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MR. RUGGLES: This is August 29th, 1985. I 'm Glenn

Rugg les i n te r v i ew ing Don E l l i s , r e t i r ed Reg iona l D i r ec to r o f

R e g i o n l c . W e ' r e i n t h e r e g i o n a l o f fi c e i n F l i n t , M i c h i g a n .

Mr. El l is, we know you were born in a place cal led

Piggott, Arkansas in 1918. But we don't know why you came to

F l in t , o r why your parents d id . Could you take us back to

your parents moving to Fl int , and te l l us about them, and your

ea r l y ch i l dhood?

MR. ELLIS: Wel l , back in 1918, I don' t remember too

m u c h a b o u t i t . We c a m e t o F l i n t . M y f a t h e r d i e d . I n e v e r

knew my father. My father died when I was 11 months old. And

so my mother had the chore of raising me and my two older

b r o t h e r s .

I was around seven years old, I think, when we left

P iggo t t , A rkansas . Bu t l i ke mos t peop le f rom va r ious s ta tes

back in those days, there was no work opportunity for my

mother, and my two brothers, who were ten and twelve years

older than I, and so I assume that we came to Flint the same

as thousands of other people back dur ing that per iod of t ime



1 fo r work oppor tun i t ies .

2 M R . R U G G L E S : W h e r e d i d y o u g o t o s c h o o l i n F l i n t ?

3 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w h e n I c a m e t o F l i n t , I c a n ' t

4 remember exactly the first place we lived. But we always

5 lived on what you call the west side of town, which is the

6 Chevrolet and Fisher Body plants, and Fisher Tool.

7 I a t t e n d e d H a z l e t o n S c h o o l , w h i c h i s r i g h t a c r o s s

8 from the Chevrolet plant on Kearsley Street. I l ived on the

9 corner of Stevenson and Bluff and went to Longfellow, and then

10 I went to Zimmerman, which is out here on Corunna Road. And

11 then from Zimmerman, I went to Flint Central High School.

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u g r a d u a t e d f r o m h i g h s c h o o l r i g h t

13 during the Depression. It was kind of a tough situation for a

14 young man.

1 5 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , i t w a s b a c k i n ' 3 5 . A n d a t t h a t

16 particular time, we were just coming out of the old Depression

17 days. For young guys coming out of school at that particular

18 time, there was not too much work availability. And so you

19 just had to scuffle along, whatever you could find to do, for

20 a few years, anyway. Back in those years, '35, '36 and '37,

21 it was pretty tough for young guys just getting through school

22 a t t ha t t ime .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : I t w a s a b o u t s i x y e a r s a f t e r y o u g o t

24 out of high school that you joined the union. In between the

25 time you graduated from high school and your union activities,

r



1 what did you do for work?
2 ! M R . E L L I S : W e l l , a s I r e c a l l , I t h i n k t h e fi r s t

3 | full-time, what I call a full-time job, I worked at the King

4 Clothing Store downtown on Saginaw Street, wrapping boxes and

5 suits and things that people buy in a clothing store.

6 ! A n d t h e n f r o m t h e r e , t h a t j o b , o u t o n w h a t w e a l w a y s

7 call the Chevrolet corner, r ight across from the Chevrolet.

8 Of course, I grew up there. I peddled papers there, and

9 shined shoes in all the pool halls, racked pool balls. And so

10 I worked, then, for the next couple to three years, I worked

11 in pretty near all of the pool rooms along the Chevrolet

12 co rne r, t he re .

1 3 | T h a t ' s w h e r e I w a s w o r k i n g a t t h e t i m e o f t h e

14 str ike. I was r ight across the street on Kearsley Street at

15 Plant Nine when the raid, the strike came to a head. And at

16 that point, the governor had sent in the reserves, and it was

17 al l r ight around in that corner. I had a job, but to get to

18 it, you had to get cleared, number one, through the National

19 Guard people.

2 0 S o r e a l l y , u p u n t i l a b o u t ' 3 9 , I w o r k e d i n a l l t h e

21 pool halls. And each one of them had a restaurant and pool

2 2 t a b l e s .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u w e r e a n e y e w i t n e s s , t h e n , t o t h e

24 s i t -down in '37?

2 5 I M R . E L L I S : Y e s . Y e s .
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MR. RUGGLES: And your mother was working in Fisher

Body, too?

MR. ELLIS: Yeah. My mother, when we first came to

Flint, she worked in the Ferris Store, down in - - which was,

unt i l a few years ago, downtown. And then she fina l ly got a

job in the old Fisher Tool p lant , and she was working at

F i she r Too l a t t he t ime o f t he s i t - down s t r i kes .

Back in the F isher Too l and in a l l o f the p lants

that had women at that point, women were not actually

p e r m i t t e d t o s t a y i n s i d e t h e p l a n t d u r i n g t h e s i t - d o w n s t r i k e .

But she was working there, and worked there unti l 1945.

She had 17 or 18 years seniority in 1945, and she

did not go back to work, because during the wart ime, the old

F isher p lan t wen t comp le te l y ou t o f ex i s tence . And they

d idn ' t come back in to be ing un t i l a f te r the war. And so she

was a housemother for GMI. She kept GMI students. And she

didn't go back to work in 1945.

MR. RUGGLES: Going back to that period of the sit-

down, your mother would come home with her hands so worn raw

that she could hardly prepare food.

MR. ELLIS: Yeah.

MR. RUGGLES: Could you, as best you can, describe

the condi t ions that your mother had to put up wi th in those

days?

MR. ELLIS: Wel l , I can reca l l that we a lways kept



1 two or three boarders. And of course, mom worked. And I was

2 pretty young at that point. So it was my job to kind of help

3 her out a litt le bit. And she worked on what they called

4 stuffing cushions, and I really didn't know anything about

5 that unt i l la ter l i fe . But her hands would be cracked. I

6 don't know, she got something from the drugstore, whatever it

7 was. And her hands, from using the form part of the thing, I

8 can recall when she tried to peel potatoes, she'd have to

9 sometimes heat the water, warm up the water, put her hands in

10 the water, so she could let go of the paring knife.

1 1 A n d I a l s o c a n r e c a l l s h e c o u l d n ' t s l e e p n i g h t s a

12 lot of the times. She'd take a washrag with cold water and

13 hold her feet. Just from being young at that part icular t ime,

14 I can just v isual ize that , real ly, th ings were pret ty rough

15 inside the plants back in those days.

1 6 M R . R U G G L E S : W h a t d o y o u r e c a l l , a s a n e y e w i t n e s s ,

17 about the sit-down? You were right there out in the street as

18 i t occur red?

1 9 I M R . E L L I S : W e l l , y e s . A s I s a y , t h e w e s t s i d e o f

20 Flint back in those days was what we always called later as a

21 kind of heyday. It had such a conglomeration of people, from

22 al l over different states. And i t was a pretty rough place to

23 grow up in.
2 4 A n d I w a s w o r k i n g i n t h e F l i n t c i g a r s t o r e , w h i c h i s

25 I just direct ly across the street from it . And my first



1 recollection was that I thought, as normal, that there was a

2 fight going on out in the alley. And that was really what got

3 us out. And we all came out of the poolroom to look. And of

4 course, i t was right straight across the street from the Plant

5 N i n e .

6 A n d a t t h a t p o i n t w a s w h e n t h e y , b a c k a t t h a t t i m e

7 was when the women brigade, what they called it at that time,

8 had all got together and was breaking the windows out of the

9 Plant Nine. And people inside there were breaking the windows

10 out. And we didn't know what it was about, really, in that

11 sense. But there was teargas inside the plant, and the

12 windows were being broken so they could get the teargas out.

1 3 A n d t h e n t h e a m b u l a n c e s w e r e c o m i n g d o w n , a n d t h e y

14 were taking people from Plant Nine. And it was quite a day,

15 there, that part icular day. And it just seemed to happen al l

16 at this one time, because going back now to the history of the

17 thing, there was a lot of maneuvering going on at that

18 part icular t ime. And real ly, Plant Nine was not involved at

19 all. It was to create the problem in Plant Nine, so that they

20 could take over Plant Four, which history shows was

2 1 s u c c e s s f u l .

2 2 i M R . R U G G L E S : A s a n e y e w i t n e s s , i t l o o k e d l i k e j u s t

23 ano the r s t ree t figh t?
2 4 M R . E L L I S : I t l o o k e d j u s t r e a l l y , l i k e i n l a t e r

25 l i fe, you see, you know, riots on the streets. And for people



1 who weren't in close on what was happening -- and there were

2 very few people that were, because working in the kind of

3 places that we worked, and all the kinds of people that came

4 in, you know, rumors float. And there was no leak of any kind

5 from the people who had daily contact with those inside the

6 p l a n t .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e v i o l e n c e y o u s a w o u t o n t h e

8 streets, was that before Murphy brought in the troops?

9 M R . E L L I S : N o , n o . N o , t h i s a l l h a p p e n e d a f t e r t h e

10 troops came in. And of course, I was pretty young at that

11 part icular t ime, and I 'd been out late. I had to be in the

12 next morning at five o'clock, and opened up the pool hall. We

13 had coffee and doughnuts for the guys going in to work.

1 4 A n d i t w a s k i n d o f c o o l . Yo u k n o w , I h a d a t o p c o a t

15 on, and I was hustling in to work after about an hour or two

16 hours' sleep, and got to work. It used to be Mack's Drugstore

17 was right on the corner, across the street from Silam and

18 Kearsley. And I just stepped off of the curb, and about half

19 asleep, and a guy stuck a bayonet under my nose and said, you

20 know, ha l t . And I thought , "Holy Chr is t . " I was s t i l l as leep

21 yet. And that was the first knowledge that we had of the

22 troops coming in, because they came in late at night, or in

23 the morning.
And it took me about an hour and a half. He took me

.22 a half a block over to the personnel office, and it took me



1 about an hour and a half to get a clearance on the basis that

2 I worked over there. So I didn't really open up that morning,

3 because that one whole area was ringed with the National

4 Guards.

5 i T h e n r i g h t a f t e r t h a t , t h o s e w h o h a d j o b s o r

6 businesses there could go and come with a pass. But, you

7 know, there were grocery stores and everything right around in

8 that area, drugstores and so forth. And they had the same

9 thing as marshal law, you know. Two or three people knew one

10 another, you know, to stop on the street, you were gently

11 reminded, you know, if you were going to the grocery store, to

12 get your groceries or whatever it was, and go back home. And

13 so it was kind of a unique situation.

1 4 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u h a d n o i d e a w h a t a g r e a t , h i s t o r i c

15 event this was?

1 6 M R . E L L I S : N o n e w h a t s o e v e r .

17 I MR. RUGGLES: I n 1941 , you j o i ned t he Loca l 651 , a t

18 AC Spark Plug, and as a loading dock worker. What attracted

19 you to that job, or was it just a job?

2 0 ' M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I w a s n ' t r e a l l y a t t r a c t e d t o i t .

21 Previous to '41, I had been working construction in '39, '40

22 and '41 in Memphis, Tennessee. Or Millington, which is about

23 13, 18 miles from Memphis. I worked for DuPont, and they

24 built a power plant down there.

2 5 I g o t m a r r i e d i n M e m p h i s , t o a g i r l f r o m M i c h i g a n



1 h e r e . S h e c a m e d o w n . I w a s i n 1 A , d r a f t c a l l , w h i c h i s y o u n g

2 a n d s i n g l e a n d e v e r y t h i n g . A n d s o I g o t c a l l e d t o s e r v i c e

3 f r o m M i l l i n g t o n , Te n n e s s e e . A n d I ' d b e e n m a r r i e d f o u r m o n t h s .

4 L e t ' s s e e , I g o t m a r r i e d i n J a n u a r y - - w e l l , s i x m o n t h s b e f o r e

5 I w e n t i n , b e c a u s e I w e n t i n i n J u n e .

6 M y w i f e h a d n e v e r b e e n o u t o f M i c h i g a n , a n d s h e w a s

7 p r e g n a n t . S o s h e c a m e b a c k t o M i c h i g a n a n d I w a s d r a f t e d , a n d

8 I d i d n ' t t e l l t h e m a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e t h a t I w a s m a r r i e d .

9 I fi g u r e d , w e l l , I ' d t a l k e d i t o v e r w i t h h e r , a n d I fi g u r e d ,

1 0 w h a t t h e h e l l , y o u ' r e g o i n g t o h a v e t o g o , a n d y o u m i g h t j u s t

1 1 a s w e l l g o o n e y e a r , y o u k n o w , t h e fi r s t o n e . A n d y o u j u s t

1 2 o n l y h a d t o s e r v e o n e y e a r . S o s h e c a m e b a c k t o F l i n t , a n d I

1 3 w e n t i n t o t h e s e r v i c e .

1 4 S h e b e c a m e r e a l i l l b e c a u s e o f t h e p r e g n a n c y , a n d I

1 5 c a n r e c a l l , s h e w a s g o i n g t o t h e d o c t o r t w o t i m e s a w e e k , a n d

1 6 i t w a s $ 5 a t r i p . T h a t w a s $ 1 0 a w e e k , a n d I w a s m a k i n g $ 2 1

1 7 i n t h e s e r v i c e .

1 8 S h e w a s s t a y i n g w i t h h e r m o t h e r a n d h e r f a t h e r , a n d

1 9 h e r f a t h e r w o r k e d a t B u i c k . To m a k e a l o n g s t o r y s h o r t , I

2 0 a p p l i e d f o r a d i s c h a r g e . I w e n t t h r o u g h t h e R e d C r o s s , a n d I

2 1 g o t w h a t t h e y c a l l - - I j u s t fi n i s h e d m y b a s i c t r a i n i n g , f o u r

2 2 m o n t h s . I w a s i n f r o m J u n e u n t i l O c t o b e r i n 1 9 4 1 . A n d I ' d

2 3 j u s t fi n i s h e d t h e b a s i c t r a i n i n g , a n d I g o t d i s c h a r g e d i n

2 4 O c t o b e r 1 9 4 1 . T h e n I c a m e b a c k t o F l i n t .

2 5 I h a d m y j o b s t i l l i n M e m p h i s , o r M i l l i n g t o n , a n d I
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had 45 days to go back, and so I fully intended on going back

to work in Mi l l i ng ton , Tennessee. And o f course , my w i fe sa id

that she thought maybe we ought to stay in Michigan. At that

par t icu lar t ime, then, jus t before my 45 days was up, I

s ta r ted app ly ing fo r work up here . And o f course , back in

1941, i t was not too hard to find a job. And so I went out to
/ "

AC, and I was on construction work.
—̂ O

; s o I t o l d a g u y t o c o m e o u t , a n d w e h a d t o l i n e u p .
And I to ld the guy out there that I wanted to h i re in in the

s k i l l e d t r a d e s . Yo u k n o w, a m i l l w r i g h t . I ' d w o r k e d i n a

b l a c k s m i t h ' s s h o p i n c o n s t r u c t i o n . E i t h e r a b l a c k s m i t h o r a

mi l lwr ight . And he looked at me for a minute, and he says,

wel l , where did you serve an apprent iceship?

Wel l , back in those days, you d idn ' t serve an

apprent icesh ip , you jus t went to work on const ruct ion, and you

went to work as a he lper, and then i f you had a l i t t le b i t o f

ta lent , you 'd get to a second c lass , whatever the

c l a s s i fi c a t i o n w a s .

Anyway, he says, what else can you do? And I told

h im, he l l , I says, I can do anyth ing. So I wound up go ing

ins ide and fi l l i ng ou t an app l i ca t i on , and I wen t home . Tha t

was in the morn ing , and I go t a ca l l tha t n igh t . So the nex t

day, I went in, and they to ld me they didn' t have any jobs in

sk i l led t rades a t tha t t ime, and tha t I had no t served an

app ren t i cesh ip , and t ha t i f I was i n te res ted i n a p roduc t i on

10



1 job, they'd hire me in, and then somewhere down the road, you

2 know, if a work opportunity was available, that they'd think

3 about t ransferr ing me.

4 S o t h a t ' s w h e r e I f o u n d o u t w h a t a l o a d e r w a s . A

5 loader really was nothing but carrying boxes, and slapping

6 them into the trucks, from the dock into the trucks. It was

7 spark plugs and fuel pumps. Whatever was made.

8 I w o r k e d t h e r e f o r t w o m o n t h s , I b e l i e v e . A n d I w a s

9 laid off two weeks. And I was recalled, and I was moved from

10 the Dort Highway off of the loading dock into the machine gun

11 operation over on Industrial Avenue.

1 2 A t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e , t h e r e w a s w h a t t h e y c a l l e d

13 a hand-buff and polish operation job was open. I convinced

14 the foreman that, because of my past work outside, that I knew

15 all about that kind of a job, and so I got put in on what they

16 ca l led hand-buff and pol ish. I worked at that c lass ificat ion

17 up until the middle part of the wartime.

1 8 T h e n I g o t r e c a l l e d i n t o t h e s e r v i c e . I w a s o n a

1 9 2 4 - h o u r r e c a l l , a n y w a y , w h e n I g o t o u t . B y t h a t t i m e , I h a d a

2 0 c h i l d . T h e d r a f t b o a r d i n M i c h i g a n r e c a l l e d m e , b u t t h e y

21 didn't have any of my paperwork. I t was st i l l in Mi l l ington,

22 Tennessee. And so they told me I would have to go from Flint

23 back to Millington, and then go back into the service from
24 Mi l l ington, Tennessee.

2 5 i I s a i d t o t h e m , w e l l , h o w d o I g e t d o w n t h e r e ? A n d

11



1 they said, wel l , that 's your job to get there, because that 's

2 where you were drafted from. And I said to them, well, I'm

3 not going to pay my own to go from here to Millington to go

4 back into the service. I knew at the point that i f I had to

5 go back, which I had no objections to, that they could at

6 least send an MP for me to take me down there.

7 S o , t o m a k e a l o n g s t o r y s h o r t o n t h a t p o i n t , t h e y

8 sent me back home. I went back to work until they could get

9 i t straightened out. And they final ly had the papers shipped

10 up here. And then they recalled me, and sent me into Detroit.

11 And that was during the latter part of the war at that

12 particular time, just before the war was ending.

1 3 A n d I w e n t b a c k t h r o u g h t h e e x a m i n a t i o n , a n d g o t t h e

14 papers and everything, and I had a date to return to service.

15 And then the war ended, and you're reading in the papers that,

16 you know, people that were in between going back into service

17 would not have to go.

1 8 S o I c a l l e d t h e d r a f t b o a r d , a n d t h e y t o l d m e t h e y

19 had not been notified by Washington, and I was to leave on

20 whatever date it was. Anyway, the day before I was to leave,

21 I I got a telegram that I didn't have to go back into service.

2 2 T h e s e q u e n c e o f t h a t s t o r y w a s t h a t I w a s o n t h e

23 shop committee at that particular time, and there was a need

24 of skilled people. And so more or less as a joke to Ralph

25 Estes (ph. sp.), who was the labor manager at that particular

12



1 t i m e , I t o l d h i m I h a d i n m i n d a g u y t h a t c o u l d w o r k a s a

2 m i l l w r i g h t . A n d t h e y w e r e r e a l l y l o o k i n g f o r p e o p l e . A n d h e

3 h a d a l l t h e b a c k g r o u n d . A l l h e h a d t o d o w a s c h e c k h i s

4 b a c k g r o u n d a n d h i s r e c o r d s .

5 S o R a l p h s a i d , w h a t ' s h i s n a m e ? A n d o f c o u r s e , h e

6 k n e w I w a s g o i n g t o g o i n t o t h e s e r v i c e , y o u k n o w . A n d I t o l d

7 h i m D o n E l l i s . A n d h e l o o k e d a t m e , a n d h e w a s g r i n n i n g a

8 l i t t l e b i t . A n d h e s a i d , I ' m s u r e y o u ' r e j o k i n g . A n d I s a i d ,

9 n o , I ' m n o t j o k i n g . W e l l , h e s a i d , h e l l , y o u ' r e g o i n g i n t o

1 0 t h e s e r v i c e . W e l l , I s a y s , I ' m n o t g o i n g . A n d I t r i e d t o

1 1 h i r e i n h e r e u n d e r s k i l l e d . S o y o u j u s t g o c h e c k m y r e c o r d

1 2 a p p l i c a t i o n . T h a t ' s a l l I e v e r d i d .

1 3 j S o h e s e n t a g u y u n d e r n e a t h h i m u p , a n d l o o k e d t h e

1 4 r e c o r d u p . W e l l , h e s a i d , i f y o u w e r e n ' t g o i n g t o g o b a c k

1 5 i n t o t h e s e r v i c e , h e s a i d , y o u k n o w , w e w o u l d t a k e a l o o k a t

1 6 t h i s . A n d I s a y s , o k a y . S o , a n y w a y t o m a k e a l o n g s t o r y

1 7 s h o r t o n t h a t o n e , w h e n I fi n a l l y d i d n o t h a v e t o g o b a c k , I

1 8 r a i s e d i t a g a i n w i t h h i m .

1 9 S o h e t r a n s f e r r e d m e t h e n , a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e .

2 0 I w e n t i n t o t h e s k i l l e d g r o u p u n d e r t h e a g r e e m e n t a t t h a t

2 1 p a r t i c u l a r t i m e , t h e o l d u p g r a d e a g r e e m e n t , a s a m i l l w r i g h t .

2 2 A n d I w o r k e d t h e r e u p u n t i l t h e w a r w a s c o m p l e t e d .

2 3 i T h e n t h e y h a d a r e d u c t i o n i n t h e s k i l l e d g r o u p , a n d

2 4 I w e n t b a c k i n t o t h e h a n d - b u f f a n d p o l i s h u n t i l ' 4 8 .

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : D e s c r i b e t h e w o r k i n g c o n d i t i o n s f r o m a

13



1 union man's point of view. How bad were they at the AC Spark

2 Plug when you went in there?

3 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , t h e y w e r e n ' t b a d . N u m b e r o n e , t h e

4 AC plant in the city of Flint has always been, and was then,

5 not a bad place to work, as far as the inside of the plant.

6 It was all light work. There wasn't any tremendous heavy

7 work, because they all made small parts. It was,

8 comparatively, a good place to work. We had -- now looking

9 back, from where we are today -- we a tremendous amount of

10 health hazards and safety things at that particular t ime.

11 M R . R U G G L E S : C o u l d y o u d e s c r i b e t h o s e ?

1 2 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w h e n I s a y t h i s , w e h a d a l a c k o f

13 guards on machines. We had a lack of instructions from the

14 people. You know, you hire in, "you don't put your hands

15 under these things"; "you don't do this."

1 6 A n d d u s t , l i k e i n t h e b l o w e r s y s t e m s f r o m t h e

17 buffing wheels, which I worked on, real ly weren't efficient.

18 And it was way back in those days. But really, to describe it

19 as work that I had known other people prior to the union, in

20 Chevrolet and in assembly plants, and it wasn't that type of

21 work. And they were predominantly women back at that time,

22 because a l ight job operation.

2 3 B u t a s f a r a s F l i n t w a s c o n c e r n e d , a t t h a t

24 particular time, and even up until now, it really was a good

25 place to work.

14



1 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u g o t i n v o l v e d i n 6 5 1 a s a n

2 alternate committeeman? Was that your first posit ion in the

3 u n i o n ?

4 M R . E L L I S : A l t e r n a t e c o m m i t t e e m a n . W e l l , w h e n I

5 h i red in - - of course, at that part icular t ime, you didn' t

6 have check-off. So when I hired in, because of where I grew

7 up, and knowing all the people that were involved, you know,

8 in the sit-down strikes, when I hired in, I asked who was a

9 committeeman. And they told me. And I told the committeeman

10 I wanted to join the union, and how do I go about it.

11 I h a d a f e l l o w w h o w a s r e a l b u s y a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r

12 time, and he says, I'll get back with you. And he was the

13 shop committeeman. A couple of weeks went by, and I thought,

14 well, Christ, this must be a pretty tough thing to get into.

15 He didn't come back.

1 6 S o I t a l k e d t o a c o u p l e o f t h e g u y s t h a t I w a s

17 working with there, and I said to them, do they have a union

18 hall? I knew they had them over on the corner of the

19 Chevrolet. And so they told me where it was. And so I went

20 over there and told them I wanted to join the union. And at

21 that time, the committeeman was supposed to get you involved.

2 2 S o I j o i n e d t h e u n i o n . A n d I t h o u g h t , w e l l , a t

least the committeeman ought to take a new guy. If a new guy

goes and says, hey, I want to join the union, by God, he ought
to have took his money and given him a receipt, you know.
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1 S o I t h o u g h t , h e l l , I c a n d o a s g o o d a j o b a s t h a t .

2 So I found out when the elect ions were going to be, and what

3 i t was go ing to be. And anyway, I wound up runn ing for

4 a l te rna te commi t teeman. And i t was no t a ve ry respons ib le j ob

5 a t t h a t p o i n t . I m e a n , y o u d i d n ' t d o a n y t h i n g u n l e s s t h e

6 commi t teeman wasn ' t there .

7 I g o t e l e c t e d , a n d t h e n f r o m t h e r e , I j u s t d e c i d e d

8 wel l , i f I can be an a l te rnate commi t teeman, I wanted to be

9 a b l e t o b e a d i s t r i c t c o m m i t t e e m a n . A n d I r a n f o r d i s t r i c t

1 0 a n d g o t e l e c t e d . A n d o f c o u r s e , a f t e r t h a t , I t h o u g h t w h a t

1 1 t h e h e l l . I t w a s i n t e r e s t i n g . I l i k e d i t . I l i k e d w o r k i n g

12 w i th peop le . And so I ran fo r shop commi t tee .

1 3 M R . R U G G L E S : W h a t d o t h o s e d i f f e r e n t j o b s a s k o f

14 you? Aside from col lect ing dues, what does a committeeman do?

1 5 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , a c o m m i t t e e m a n ' s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y

16 then , and now, i s se rv i ce , o r se rv ing the g r ievance p rocedure .

17 And we had an ag reemen t , na tu ra l l y, a t t ha t pa r t i cu la r t ime ,

1 8 t o o .

1 9 S o y o u h a n d l e g r i e v a n c e s . A n d I g u e s s t h a t r e a l l y

20 abou t t he on l y d i f f e rence i n t he s teps wou ld be i s t ha t t he

21 d is t r i c t commi t teeman had 250 peop le in a d is t r i c t , and a shop

22 commi t teeman had s i x o r e igh t o r t en d i s t r i c t s . And a shop

23 commi t teeman wou ld se rv i ce jus t e igh t o r ten d i f f e ren t a reas ,

24 and was the top guy a t t ha t po in t f o r a l l e i gh t o r t en

2 :2 d i f f e ren t d i s t r i c t commi t t eemen hand l i ng t he g r i evances a t h i s
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step of the procedure.

And then by go ing f rom tha t par t i cu la r job , then , o f

course back in those days you had caucuses. They st i l l do.

And the caucus I was in, came up short where nobody would run

for p res ident . And so they vo lun teered me.

I r e a l l y w a s n o t i n t e r e s t e d i n t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e

i n b e i n g p r e s i d e n t . I l i k e d t h e c o m m i t t e e w o r k . A n d I l i k e d

the involvement, because you were in the p lant a l l the t ime.

And president , you moved out of the p lant , and i t was a fu l l -

t ime j ob .

T h a t w a s k i n d o f , a s I f o u n d o u t l a t e r, a l i t t l e

d i f f e r e n t t y p e o f a n o p e r a t i o n . I t ' s a n a d m i n i s t r a t i v e

posi t ion, and you can only become involved, as far as

gr ievances are concerned, over the phone or in contact wi th a

d is t r i c t shop commi t tee , w i th the except ion o f under a

cont rac t , the pres ident o f a loca l , upon not i fy ing management

24 hours ahead of t ime, can attend al l the shop committee

meet ings.

I r e c a l l , a f t e r I w a s e l e c t e d p r e s i d e n t , t h e fi r s t

Thursday, al l the shop committeemen met. And<f^go~96wn the

fi rs t Thu rsday, and s i t w i t h t hem. And Ra lph Es tes a r i d M i l l /

Noner (ph. sp. ) a t that par t icu lar t ime were- l -arbor re la t ions

vcoo rd i na to r s .

And they a l l congratu la ted me on the firs t meet ing.

And the second time, I'm down there, and Ralph says, Don, he
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1 says, I'd like to ask you, he says, am I to understand that

2 we're now going to have an eight-man shop committee?

3 A n d I l o o k e d a t h i m , a n d I r e a l l y d i d n ' t k n o w w h a t

4 the hell he was talking about. And then all at once, i t

5 dawned on me, and I thought, well, he was kind of telling me

6 he didn't want me there.

7 W e l l , t h e a g r e e m e n t g i v e s m e , y o u k n o w, p e r m i s s i o n

8 to be there. And I said, wel l , yes. In my job, I can find

9 plenty of time for one day a week. And so you'll have an

10 eight-man shop committee, as long as I'm president. Because

11 that was the work I l iked. And natural ly, i t kept you abreast

12 of everything going on in your local union.

1 3 j A n d h e g e n t l y t h e n r e m i n d e d m e . H e s a i d , w e l l , y o u

14 have a habit of reading the national contract, and only

15 reading the parts that you l ike. He says, there's a certain

16 obl igat ion for you to perform.

1 7 A n d I h a d a l w a y s h a d a g o o d r e l a t i o n s h i p w o r k i n g

18 with management. On that basis, we each had our own job, but

1 9 w e h a d a m u t u a l r e s p e c t f o r o n e a n o t h e r . A n d I t h o u g h t h e w a s

2 0 g e t t i n g g o d d a m n e d o b n o x i o u s , y o u k n o w.

21 ! And then he sa id , now, you know what you have to do,

22 you know, to come back into the plant once you leave. That

2 2 means even shop committee, you've got to notify me.

2 2 A n d I s a i d , o h . I s a i d , w e l l , t h e n , d o n ' t w o r r y ,

2 2 I' l l handle that. So after that meeting, I went back and told

18



1 the secretary, I want you to send a letter to management and

2 advise them that, starting with the next Thursday, I wil l be

3 attending every shop committee meeting that I have time to do.

4 And so rather than give them a letter every week, 24 hours, I

5 sent him that one.

6 A n d I g o b a c k t o t h e n e x t m e e t i n g , a n d I fi g u r e d , i f

7 he wanted to be a real smarty about it, he'd make me do it

8 every week. But I sent i t . And I asked him, I said, well ,

9 I 've read the agreement. And this really doesn't comply

10 entirely with it , but that's my intentions. Do you want me to

11 use that letter, or do you want me to send you one 24 hours

12 every week, the day before?

1 3 H e s a i d , n o . H e s a i d , t h a t w o n ' t b e n e c e s s a r y . S o

14 I didn't think anything about i t at the t ime, but I would

15 think, checking back, that the shop committee, the years I was

16 elected president, we had an eight-man shop committee, because

17 I had time to go once a week to all the shop committee

18 meet ings.

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u m u s t h a v e b e e n a p r e t t y p o p u l a r

20 president. You were elected to four consecutive terms.

2 1 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I d o n ' t k n o w . I d o n ' t r e a l l y

22 think it was just me as an individual. But I was young, and I

23 l iked the kind of work. I l iked being with people. And they

24 had problems under the agreement that it was important to

25 them.
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1 S o w h e n I b e c a m e p r e s i d e n t , a s I s a y, y o u m o v e f r o m

2 one job to the other, you find there's a difference. So I

3 guess my popularity would have been in that sense. It would

4 have been that I normally have no problem relating one-on-one

5 with people. And I was able to convince the people who were

6 elected -- and you know, it was unheard of, pretty near,

7 start ing off when I was first there, for one whole slate to

8 get elected. You know, i t was spl i t up.

9 A n d I w o r k e d w i t h t h o s e w h o w e r e n ' t w i t h m y g r o u p ,

10 as far as the union was concerned. And I convinced our people

11 that, you know, if you're interested, you run for a job, but

12 if you get the job, you do it.

1 3 j S o i n t h e p r o c e s s o f k i n d o f s e t t i n g u p a n o p e r a t i o n

14 like that, why, we policed our own groups pretty good. And if

15 human beings are human beings, if one wound up not really

16 caring too much about the job, why then, we would eliminate

17 him ourselves, and wouldn't run him.

1 8 S o I t h i n k , r e a l l y , c o m i n g f r o m w h e r e y o u a l w a y s h a d

19 split groups of people, putting them together on that kind of

20 a basis, you survived every election. And so, if you don't

2:; lose elections, I guess you'd be considered popular. I don't

2 2 know.

MR. RUGGLES: When you speak of splits, do you mean

2 4 p o l i t i c a l s p l i t s ?

2 : : . M R . E L L I S : Y e s . W e l l - -
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1 M R . R U G G L E S : E c o n o m i c s p l i t s ?

2 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h , p o l i t i c a l c a u c u s e s w i t h i n l o c a l s .

3 Of which, they sti l l have them. Certain groups of people, the

4 same as your national elections. Certain groups of people

5 band together. They feel that they have all the answers, or

6 more of the answers than the other group who's running. And

7 that was what we'd call polit ical caucuses.

8 G o i n g b a c k t o t h e o l d d a y s , t h o u g h , t h e r e w a s a

9 struggle within our own union of polit ical caucuses.

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : A t t h e l o c a l l e v e l ?

1 1 M R . E L L I S : Y e s , a t t h e l o c a l l e v e l . A n d t h a t g o e s

12 back to the political struggles of Walter Reuther, and came

13 back all the way back through the struggles prior to Walter

14 being elected, of Homer Martin, and who was involved under the

15 j u r i sd i c t i on - - we l l , no t j u r i sd i c t i on , rea l l y, bu t unde r t he

16 umbrella of the old AF of L.

1 7 A n d s o y o u h a d , t h e n , w h a t w a s k i n d o f c a l l e d t h e

18 left and the right of the union. And they wanted to run on

19 the left side that was either supposedly a Trotskyite, a

20 commie, a socialist, of which there were quite a few back in

21 those days.

2 2 A n d i t m a d e a c o n t r i b u t i o n , b a c k i n ' 3 6 a n d ' 3 7 . I t

23 made a tremendous contribution of really getting the union
24 formed, and the sit-down strikes.

2 5 B u t t h e n t h e i r t h e o r y w e n t a l i t t l e b i t b e y o n d , y o u
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1 know. They had the " isms," as I cal l i t , and I real ly didn' t

2 understand too much about them. But I was wooed, you know, by

3 all of them because I was pretty young president at that time.

4 And I think the record, as I recall -- I 'm not sure -- that I

5 was probably the youngest man elected in a General Motors

6 plant as president of a General Motors plant. Because I was

7 pretty young in age, and the union was pretty young. And so

8 you sti l l had the people who participated in the sit-down

9 str ike that were, you know, holding offices in al l of the

10 l oca l un ions .

11 A n d s o t h e l e f t a n d t h e r i g h t , w h a t w e a l w a y s c a l l e d

12 the right wing of the union, which was the supporters of

13 Walter Reuther. And the left part of the element in the local

14 unions would always support at the top level was the

15 opposition to Walter and George Addi-s'.

1 6 I T h e f o r m a t i o n , r e a l l y , o f t h e l e f t a n d t h e r i g h t ,

17 came directly from the roots of the local union. And I guess

18 it was probably adopted at the top level, you know, as

19 caucuses, because we all belonged to a national caucus. You

20 either belonged to Walter's caucus or you belonged to Addis's

21 caucus, or R.J. Thomas. And that was the left part, what we

22 designated as the left part of the union.

23 I MR. RUGGLES: You know what I 'm go ing to ask you
24 next, of course. Which one did you belong to?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I w a s a l w a y s r e f e r r e d o r k n o w n a s
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a r i gh t w inge r. I was a lways a Wa l te r Reu the r suppor te r. And

l i ke I say, back i n t hose days , r ea l l y, I p robab l y d i dn ' t know

what the he l l a lo t o f the d i f fe rence be tween the le f t and

r igh t was , in tha t sense . Bu t I was a suppor te r o f Wa l te r

Reuther 's and always have been a supporter of Walter 's.

MR. RUGGLES: Were the local unions like 651

pressured or forced to choose s ides? And i f so , what k ind o f

pressure was put on you? You mentioned being wooed, for

i n s t a n c e .

MR. ELL IS : We l l , f r om the l e f t s i de o f t he t h i ng ,

each loca l un ion had , rea l l y, l e f t w ing caucuses and r igh t

w ing caucuses. And^we had sp l i t peop le e lec ted, as I sa id .

And I know Pete;Schumaker (ph. sp.), for example, and Ed

Bowman, and severed—of my local, and really at that time, Bob

Carter, who had been a previous president, was the lef t wing

o f ou r l oca l un i on .

And o f course , they were a l l t i ed w i th the le f t w ing

group, the same wi th the r igh t w ing group, w i th a l l the res t

o f t he p lan t s i n t he c i t y o f F l i n t . So you had a k i nd o f a

b road reg iona l l e f t and r igh t , and then the b road reg iona l

le f t and r igh t went in to the convent ions , you know, o f the

I n t e r n a t i o n a l U n i o n .

And so Pete used to talk to me. Pete was from

Germany, and he was a skilled tradesman. He ran as a

Trotsky i te , and we were e lected. And i t wouldn ' t have made
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1 any difference what slate he was on, he would get elected.

2 j A n d P e t e w a s , I t h i n k , a T r o t s k y . W h a t t h e y c a l l e d

3 a Trotsky. I real ly, yet , have never studied i t in depth, any

4 of them. I know it's a theory, you know, the Marxists and the

5 Lenins. But I never got involved too much later in l i fe in

6 t h a t .

7 A n d t h e n I m e t a f e l l o w b y t h e n a m e o f S a u l D o l i n g e r

8 . (ph. sp.), and he was kind of like a national left wing guy

9 who would float around back in those days in different parts

10 of the town. He came from Detroit. I don't know where he

11 came from prior to that. But he came into Flint. And I met

12 him through an accident.

1 3 j P e t e u s e d t o k e e p t e l l i n g m e , I ' v e g o t a y o u n g g u y

14 in Detroit who's with me who I want you to meet. And my wife

15 and I had four or five real close friends, and we used to get

16 together about whatever term it was, and there was four of us,

17 I think. And they'd come to our house one time, and we'd go

1 8 t o t h e i r s .

1 9 A n d o n e o f t h i s c o u p l e c a l l e d a n d s a i d h e w o u l d n ' t

20 be able to come. It was out to my place, and he said they

21 wouldn't be able to come this Saturday because their sister --

22 her sister and her husband was visiting them.

2 3 I A n d I s a i d , w e l l , b r i n g t h e m , y o u k n o w. W h a t ' s t h e

24 difference? We always had a little beer and food and played a

25 l i t t le penny-ante poker. And that's how I met Saul Dolinger,
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1 and Ginore Dolinger (ph. sp.) was a sister of Lyle Klepton's

2 (ph. sp.) wife. And so that's where I met Saul Dolinger.

3 | S o t h e n e x t M o n d a y, I ' m i n t o w o r k , a n d I w a s t e l l i n g

4 Pete, I met a very interesting guy over the weekend, the name

5 was Saul Dolinger. And old Pete sat up, Jesus, he says,

6 that's the guy I've been wanting you to meet.

7 W e l l , S a u l w e n t t o w o r k h e r e i n s h i p p i n g . A n d o f

8 course, being a good friend of Ginore's sister, he spent a lot

9 of time with me, you know. He was in there at that particular

10 time to activate and try and build, you know, the left wing

11 group. And he hinted around about that I ought to come, and

12 they were going to have a party. And he tried, you know, this

13 ci ty-wide party. And I said, no, I don' t th ink I want to get

14 invo lved in tha t .

1 5 A n d a f t e r a b o u t e i g h t o r n i n e m o n t h s o f t h a t , h e

16 finally said to me, look, I'm sure you understand that I'm an

17 organizer. And he told me, he tried to explain how everything

18 would work. And he says, I don't know why you don't sign this

19 card and join our caucus.

2 0 I A n d I s a i d t o h i m , n o . I d o n ' t k n o w a n y t h i n g a b o u t

21 al l these " isms," Trotskyism, communism. I said, I th ink I 'd

22 better just stay where I 'm at. I don't want to get involved

2 3 i n t h a t .

2 4 M R . R U G G L E S : Wa s t h i s b e f o r e y o u b e c a m e p r e s i d e n t ?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : N o , i t w a s a f t e r .
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MR. RUGGLES: After? You were president now? This

2 w o u l d b e i n t h e l a t e ' 4 0 s ?

MR. ELLIS: Yes.

4 M R . R U G G L E S : D o y o u r e c a l l w h a t t h e c a r d a s k e d o f

5 you? Was i t a membersh ip ca rd i n a po l i t i ca l pa r t y?

6 j M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I ' m p o s i t i v e i t w a s a m e m b e r s h i p

7 card. And i t seems to me that Saul was a Trotsky, what they

8 c a l l e d a T r o t s k y. I r e a l l y d o n ' t k n o w a h e l l o f a l o t o f

9 d i f f e r e n c e b e t w e e n t h e m . T h e r e w a s a d i f f e r e n t t h e o l o g y, I

10 guess , i n the i r m inds , and so I 'm su re tha t ' s wha t i t was .

11 Bu t I was too dumb. I d idn ' t wan t to s ign one o f those .

1 2 ' M R . R U G G L E S : D i d y o u e v e r h e a r f r o m S a u l D o l i n g e r

1 3 o r h i s w i f e a g a i n a f t e r t h a t ?

1 4 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h . W e l l , G i n o r e D o l i n g e r w a s

15 ve ry ac t i ve i n the Women 's B r igade , the s i t -down s t r i ke i n the

1 6 c i t y o f F l i n t .

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : I t h o u g h t h e r n a m e r a n g a b e l l .

18 Wasn ' t she i nvo l ved in the ' 37 s i t -down?

1 9 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e s . A n d I t h i n k a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r

20 t ime , she wasn ' t mar r i ed to Sau l . I t h i nk she was mar r i ed to

21 Kermit Johnson, who was also active, and a member of Local

2 2 6 5 9 , C h e v y.

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : W a s t h e r e a R e d B r i g a d e i n ' 3 7 ?

2 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d s h e w a s i n v o l v e d ?
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1 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e s . Y e s . R e a l a c t i v e i n i t , a n d I

2 guess they made a movie of the women, and I think that she was

3 v e r y p r e d o m i n a n t i n t h a t p a r t o f i t .

4 M R . R U G G L E S : T h i s w a s B a b i e s a n d B a n n e r s , I b e l i e v e

5 was the name of the movie.

6 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : I b e l i e v e s h e ' s s t i l l a l i v e , i s n ' t

8 s h e ?

9 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e s . Y e a h , s h e l i v e s i n C a l i f o r n i a .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t ' s g o b a c k a l i t t l e w a y s t o t h e

11 1941 Buffa lo convent ion, jus t about the t ime that you became

12 invo lved in 651. Some o f the peop le f rom the F l in t a rea went

13 as de lega tes to the Bu f fa lo conven t i on suppor t i ng Wa l te r

1 4 R e u t h e r, a g a i n s t t h e w i s h e s o f t h e i r d e l e g a t i o n s . We r e y o u

1 5 a w a r e o f a n y o f t h e a n t i - R e u t h e r, a n t i - S o c i a l i s t c o n c e r n a t

1 6 t h a t t i m e i n t h e F l i n t a r e a , j u s t a s y o u j o i n e d t h e u n i o n ?

1 7 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , y e a h . O n l y i n t h e r e f e r e n c e s , a s

18 I was say ing, I was aware o f i t because every p lant , every

1 9 l o c a l u n i o n h a d a l e f t a n d a r i g h t w i n g c a u c u s . A n d a s t h a t

2 0 w o u n d u p b y t h e m r u n n i n g i n t h e l o c a l u n i o n s a s d e l e g a t e s .

2 1 A n d s o w e k n e w t h a t a n y o n e w h o r a n o n t h e l e f t w i n g

22 s la te in the loca l un ion would be opposed to Wal ter Reuther.

And so i t was pret ty c lear-cut way back in those days. And

t h e y h a d a l o t o f s t r e n g t h . T h e y h a d a l o t o f p o l i t i c a l

s t rength. And that 's what kept R.J . Thomas and Addis e lected,
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1 y o u k n o w, a t t h e n a t i o n a l l e v e l .

2 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d y o u e v e r h e a r o f a f e l l o w n a m e d

3 B i l l M c N a r t y ( p h . s p . ) o r B i l l R o y ( p h . s p . ) ?

4 M R . E L L I S : V a g u e l y , b u t n o t p e r s o n a l l y . B o b

5 Tr a v i s , y e s . B o b w a s v e r y a c t i v e i n t h e c i t y o f F l i n t h e r e .

6 And Bob Travis d id a yeoman job, as far as help ing th is union,

7 you know, come in to be ing. But Bob Trav is was a dedicated - -

8 i n t h a t s e n s e , a l e f t w i n g e r .

9 A n d l e t ' s s e e . N a m e s . I r e a l l y w o u l d n ' t - - j u s t a s

10 wel l , I don ' t ment ion names anyway, now, because there 's a lo t

11 o f g u y s i n d i f f e r e n t l o c a l s t h a t a r e r e t i r e d . T h e r e ' s a l o t

1 2 o f u s d e a d n o w. B u t t h e r e ' s s t i l l s o m e l i v i n g t h a t d i d a

13 t remendous loca l un ion j ob , i n wha teve r pos i t i on they he ld .

14 And now re t i red , and be long to the re t i rees chap te r, and we ' re

1 5 g o o d f r i e n d s .

1 6 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t m e m e n t i o n o n e n a m e I t h i n k y o u

17 shou ld r eca l l : John McLucas ( ph . sp . ) was p res i den t - -

1 8 M R . E L L I S : O f m y l o c a l u n i o n .

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : - - o f 6 5 1 w h e n y o u j o i n e d i t - -

2 0 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

2 i M R . R U G G L E S : - - i n 1 9 4 1 . T h e r e w a s a n a t t e m p t i n

'41 - - and I 'm no t sure i f i t was be fo re o r a f te r you jo ined

2 ' : - - to shut down 651 dur ing a GM st r ike, w i thout in ternat iona l

a u t h o r i z a t i o n . T h i s w a s a n a t t e m p t , a p p a r e n t l y, b y C a r l

S w a n s o n , t h e r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r. A r e y o u f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t
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1 a t t e m p t ?

2 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , n o t r e a l l y t o o m u c h . B u t C a r l

3 Swanson was a reg iona l d i rec to r. He was f rom Bu ick . And Car l

4 w a s a n A d d i s s u p p o r t e r. A n d I ' m n o t r e a l l y t o o f a m i l i a r w i t h

5 t h e i n s a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e .

6 M R . R U G G L E S : H e a p p a r e n t l y w a s l e a d i n g a f a c t i o n

7 a g a i n s t R e u t h e r ?

8 M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

9 M R . R U G G L E S : F r o m w h a t y o u s a y . D o y o u r e c a l l

10 peop le l i ke I rene M i t che l l , Lau ra Howard?

1 1 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e s .

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y w e r e o n t h e b o a r d o f o f fi c e r s

13 w i th McLucas a t tha t t ime?

1 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

1 5 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d t h e r e w a s a n a t t e m p t t o p a i n t

16 t hese o f fice r s o f 651 as soc i a l i s t s , wh i ch appa ren t l y was a

1 7 d i r t y w o r d a t t h a t t i m e . I s t h a t a c c u r a t e ? W e r e t h e y

1 8 s o c i a l i s t s ?

1 9 M R . E L L I S : N o . N o t t o m y k n o w l e d g e , n o . I r e n e

2 0 M i t c h e l l , b e c a u s e I g o t e l e c t e d w i t h I r e n e M i t c h e l l i n 1 9 4 8 .

21 John McLucas, I can ' t rea l l y reca l l John McLucas.

2 2 I ' m n o t p o s i t i v e i f h e w a s o u r fi r s t p r e s i d e n t .

23 The re ' s a ques t i on , and I ' ve neve r r ea l l y sea rched t h i s ou t ,

24 be tween h im and ano the r fe l l ow in the l oca l un ion . And I

2 5 c a n ' t t h i n k o f h i s n a m e n o w. B u t I ' v e n e v e r r e a l l y t r a c e d
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1 tha t down. But John was pres ident , and I rene was v ice-

2 p res iden t . And Lawrence Speck (ph . sp . ) and Bas i l M i l l e r ( ph .

3 s p . ) . A n d I k n e w t h e m a l l , b u t I r e a l l y w a s n ' t - - t h i s i s i n

4 1941 here , huh?

5 M R . R U G G L E S : Y e s , t h a t ' s a n e x p l a n a t i o n o n t h e i r

6 p a r t d e n y i n g t h e c h a r g e s t h a t t h e y w e r e s o c i a l i s t s .

7 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I c o u l d j u s t t e l l y o u , t h e y

8 w e r e n ' t .

9 M R . R U G G L E S : W h y w o u l d S w a n s o n , a s a r e g i o n a l

1 0 d i r e c t o r, t r y t o g e t o n e o f h i s l o c a l s t o w a l k o u t i n a n

11 unau tho r i zed s t r i ke? Tha t seems to be a pecu l i a r ac t i on f o r a

1 2 r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r . O r i s t h a t t o o f a r b a c k f o r y o u t o r e c a l l ?

1 3 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , i t i s , i n t h a t s e n s e . I w o u l d

14 assume -- was our local the one he was try ing to get to do i t?

1 5 M R . R U G G L E S : Y e s . T h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l b o a r d h a d

1 6 a u t h o r i z e d a G e n e r a l M o t o r s s t r i k e i n j u s t a b o u t a l l o f t h e

17 p lants in F l in t except AC Spark P lug. And s ince AC had not

1 8 b e e n g i v e n i n t e r n a t i o n a l a u t h o r i z a t i o n , t h e y w e r e n o t g o i n g t o

19 walk out . But Swanson was t ry ing to conv ince them to do i t

2 0 e v e n t h o u g h t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l b o a r d h a d n o t o k a y e d i t . I t

21 isn ' t c lear why he was t ry ing to do that , except maybe he

2 2 d idn ' t want them - -

MR. ELLIS: Well, I have to assume that none of

2 these people would have supported Car l Swanson as regional

2 2 d i r ec to r, o r wou ld suppo r t t he peop le i n i n t e rna t i ona l
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1 executive board that they did. And I guess you could assume

2 that, if they had done this, and him being an officer, number

3 one, if he was telling them they ought to, I would assume what

4 he was saying is that you ought to join your brothers and

5 sisters in the city of Flint who had been authorized,

6 whichever locals had, and, you know, for support.

7 I ' d h a t e t o t h i n k t h a t h e w o u l d h a v e d o n e t h a t o n

8 the basis of had they have done this, you know, they might not

9 have a job, and they would have had no protection from the

10 internat ional executive board, i f people l ike this could have

11 disappeared from the whole operation.

1 2 | I h a t e t o b e l i e v e t h a t h e w o u l d d o i t o n t h a t b a s i s .

13 He could have done it on the basis of saying, what the hell,

14 join your brothers and sisters over here. But if he did, he

15 should have looked, to me, it would have seemed, he should

16 have looked at what repercussions could have happened to them.

17 Al l assumpt ions. I don ' t rea l ly know.

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t ' s m o v e o n t o s o m e c o n t r a c t

19 questions. Beginning in the late '30s, '39, the UAW won some

20 nice settlements from General Motors: double time on Sundays,

21 for instance; six unpaid hol idays, was short of real ly that

22 great, I suppose.

2 3 D o y o u r e c a l l , i n y o u r e a r l y y e a r s a s a n o f fi c e r i n

24 the union, at the local level, contract negotiat ions? Maybe

25 the 1945 settlement, for instance? Were you involved in the
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1 n e g o t i a t i o n s ?

2 M R . E L L I S : ' 4 5 , o r ' 4 8 .

3 M R . R U G G L E S : T h a t w a s t h e o n e , t h e b i g G M - -

4 M R . E L L I S : N o , I w o u l d n o t h a v e b e e n a t t h e l o c a l

5 - - I w o u l d n o t h a v e b e e n a s h o p c o m m i t t e e m a n a t t h a t

6 p a r t i c u l a r t i m e . T h e o n l y i n v o l v e m e n t I w o u l d h a v e h a d w o u l d

7 h a v e b e e n , I w o u l d s a y , i n ' 4 5 I t h i n k I p r o b a b l y w o u l d h a v e

b e e n t h e d i s t r i c t c o m m i t t e e m a n ^ I c a n ' t r e m e m b e r ." \ Tic LuAto? 1
9 S e e , I n e v e r k n e v t f J o h n v e r y w e l l . A n d s o I w o u l d

1 0 n o t h a v e b e e n i n v o l v e d a t t h e " l o c a l , a s a s h o p c o m m i t t e e , i n

1 1 n e g o t i a t i o n s a t t h a t p o i n t . T h e o n l y w a y I ' d h a v e b e e n

1 2 i n v o l v e d w a s a s a d i s t r i c t c o m m i t t e e m a n i n 2 d . J u s t l o c a l

1 3 u n i o n m e e t i n g s , a n d m o n t h l y m e e t i n g s .

1 4 M R . R U G G L E S : A t t h i s p e r i o d , i n t h e l a t e ' 4 0 s , y o u

1 5 w e r e s i m p l y o n e o f t h e w o r k e r s i n v o l v e d i n t h e s t r i k e s ?

1 6 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s r i g h t .

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e n e g o t i a t i o n s w e r e d o n e a t a h i g h e r

1 8 l e v e l ?

1 9 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s r i g h t .

2 0 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l b o a r d , i n

2 1 n e g o t i a t i n g t h e c o n t r a c t s , f o l l o w t h e w i s h e s o f t h e m e n ? W e r e

2 2 y o u g e t t i n g w h a t y o u w a n t e d i n t h o s e d a y s ?

2 3 M R . E L L I S : N o . B a c k i n t h o s e d a y s , y o u k n o w , i t

2 4 w o u l d n ' t h a v e m a d e a n y d i f f e r e n c e w h a t w e g o t . I t w o u l d h a v e

2 5 b e e n a l l w e w a n t e d , y o u k n o w. S u c h a s , y o u k n o w, y o u
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# * 1 mentioned unpaid holidays. And everything that we got,

2 pensions, at the time we were getting them, we were just

3 getting our foot in the door. And number one, we didn't think

4 we were going to get anything, anyway. Whoever dreamed, you

5 know? And we dreamed about pensions, and the good slogan.

6 Our union was built of slogans. It was a good slogan. It was

7 a good thing to think about. You know, when you get too old

8 to work, and too young to die.

9 A n d t h e n w h e n y o u g o t y o u r f o o t i n t h e d o o r a l i t t l e

10 bit, with any one of them, you know, like holidays, you know,

11 you start with two or three, and you wind up with whatever

12 amount we've got now, it's something that you build on.

1 3 B u t a t t h e l o c a l l e v e l - - a n d , v e r y f r a n k l y , a l l m y

14 l i fe , even at the in ternat iona l leve l , I don ' t th ink any

15 negotiations ever, to me, was what you --if they give you

16 everything you wanted, you know, which you didn't get, that

17 wouldn't have been enough anyway.

1 8 B e c a u s e w e ' v e b e e n g o i n g t h r o u g h t h e l a s t 4 2 y e a r s

19 in negot iat ions, and bui ld ing from '37, f rom nothing, unt i l

20 what we have today. So you came up with different kinds of

21 ideas, d i f ferent k inds of s logans. And you d idn ' t get i t a l l

22 to start with, you know. And so what you didn't get this one,

23 why, you would pick up and add to for the next contract.

2 4 B u t I t h i n k t h e a n s w e r , v e r y s i m p l y , a s a n

25 individual, I don't think any negotiat ions ever gave

33



1 e v e r y t h i n g t h a t p e o p l e w e r e t r y i n g t o g e t a t t h a t t i m e .

2 j A n d I s u p p o s e i f y o u j u s t p u t a b u n d l e o f e v e r y t h i n g

3 y o u g o t r i g h t t o d a y , a n d g a v e i t t o u s b a c k i n t h e fi r s t

4 n a t i o n a l c o n t r a c t w e h a d , w e w o u l d h a v e s a i d , w e ' d h a v e h a d

5 t h a t m u c h m o r e o n t h e o t h e r s i d e .

6 M R . R U G G L E S : I n 1 9 5 1 , y o u r e s i g n e d a s p r e s i d e n t t o

7 g o o n C a r t e r ' s s t a f f a s a n i n t e r n a t i o n a l r e p . Yo u b e c a m e ,

8 n o w , a l i t t l e m o r e i n v o l v e d i n s u c h t h i n g s a s n e g o t i a t i o n s ?

9 I M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : I s u p p o s e , c l o s e r t o i t , a t l e a s t .

1 1 C a n y o u d e s c r i b e y o u r r o l e a s i n t e r n a t i o n a l r e p i n l c ? W h a t

1 2 a r e a s d i d y o u s e r v i c e ?

1 3 | M R . E L L I S : Y o u s e e , I h a d b e a t C a r t e r f o r p r e s i d e n t

1 4 o f t h e l o c a l u n i o n . A n d i n 1 9 5 1 , b e c a u s e A C i s a

1 5 c o m p a r a t i v e l y s m a l l l o c a l u n i o n , G e n e r a l M o t o r s l o c a l u n i o n - -

1 6 s e e , B u i c k a n d C h e v r o l e t i n t h e c i t y o f F l i n t r a n e v e r y t h i n g ,

1 7 b e c a u s e o f t h e i r s i z e , b u l k . A l l t h e y h a d t o d o w a s g e t

1 8 t o g e t h e r , a n d s e l e c t a g r o u p o f p e o p l e , a n d t h a t w a s p r e t t y

1 9 m u c h t h e p l a c e y o u w e n t . A n d r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r s w e r e e l e c t e d

2 0 p r i m a r i l y b y t h o s e t w o l o c a l u n i o n s .

2 1 A n d B u i c k w a s t h e l a r g e s t a t t h a t p o i n t , a n d C h e v y

22 next. And so I defeated Carter in 1948. He ran again, I

2 3 t h i n k , i n ' 4 9 , a n d I b e a t h i m i n ' 4 9 .

2 4 A n d t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e , B o b w a s a l s o 9 t h w a r d

25 commissioner, in the city of Flint, and a convention delegate.
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And so I convinced Bob that he ought to make up his mind

whether he wanted to be a pol i t ical opposi t ion or whether he

wanted to be a 9th ward commissioner. And I got out, you

know, a l l t h i s was te o f t ime and e f f o r t o f hav ing to figh t a

group.

And I asked him if he would l ike to be a candidate

f o r r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r . I ' m p r e s i d e n t o f t h e l o c a l . A n d c i t y -

w ide caucuses , a t t ha t pa r t i cu l a r t ime , I dec ided a t t ha t

p a r t i c u l a r t i m e t h a t t h e r e w a s a p o s s i b i l i t y, t h e s m a l l e r

l oca l un ion cou ld e lec t a reg iona l d i rec to r, bu t you had to

have a candidate. And rather than have myself become the

candidate, why, he became AC'S candidate for regional d i rector

in 1951.

And Bob had, at the nat ional level, had been

c o n s i d e r e d a s a n t i - R e u t h e r. H e r e a l l y w a s n ' t a n t i - R e u t h e r,

but he always was associated with those kind of people, you

know.

And anyway, to make a long story short, Fisher won.

And I was pre t ty c lose to a l l the loca l un ions, because I

found that my background, as I 'm growing up, I had kind of

m ing led w i th a l l t hese peop le tha t worked in the p lan t . And

of course , I d idn ' t know they were ac t i ve in the un ion , o r

even wanting a union back at tha-fc—part icular t ime. There

wasn't too much goddamne'd/ifalk about i\t.

And anyway,
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1 at that part icular t ime. Dave and I were pretty close

2 fr iends. So we, mathematical, put our local together,

3 delegate-wise, and we became pretty big. All we had to do was

4 get a few votes somewhere.

5 A n d s o w e p u t s o m e s m a l l l o c a l u n i o n s . C a r t e r

6 became our candidate. Dave McDonald was a candidate from his

7 own local. And of course, we had an understanding that we'd

8 run our fight, and then when that was over, why, we'd join to

9 support the one guy in the region.

1 0 A n d s o t h a t ' s w h a t w e d i d . S o I ' m n o t p o s i t i v e , i t

11 doesn't seem to me that Carter was elected to that '51

12 convention. I think we took him down there.

1 3 I B u t a n y w a y, w e e l e c t e d h i m a s t h e r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r .

14 And of course, at that particular time he was elected, back in

15 those days, you know, we always figured, hell, to the victor

16 goes the spoils. And when he got elected, we were going to

17 1 let everybody go, and he'd pick different guys from different

18 locals to come work at the International Union.

1 9 W e l l , I r a n i n t o a l i t t l e p r o b l e m w i t h m y s e l f o n

20 tha t . And so I d idn ' t go to work . I fina l l y go t on , bu t i t

21 took a little time, because I had never supported a candidate

22 o f Wal ter 's for a reg iona l d i rec tor.

And in fact, Pat Patterson (ph. sp.), we defeated

22-1 Pat Patterson two times. See, he ran for regional director,

2' because Pat was out of the region. And he worked for Walter,
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or rea l c lose to Wa l te r. And I can ' t remember now, bu t i t

seems to me that in '51, I think Pat was a candidate in '51.

I th ink he was in '49 , too .

MR. RUGGLES: This is the '51 elect ion in Cleveland.

MR. ELLIS: Yeah, Bob was e lected in '51. And in

the process o f p ick ing h is s ta f f , he had to le t peop le go, you

know. And so there was a certain number of people,on the

s ta f f t ha t Wa l t e r says t o Bob , you can ' t l e t go . The re ' s no

way I' m going to le-t^therju-ge-:—>.

And so (Ar'chie Meyers/(ph. sp. ) from my local union

was an internationair—r-ep"a1: that t ime, and the only rep that

A C e v e r h a d i n t h e i r l i f e . A n d i t fi n a l l y g o t d o w n t o , B o b

wanted to put me on the s taff , and i t final ly got down to the

only way I could go on the staff was for Archie Meyers to

re s i g n a n d g o b a ck t o w o rk i n F l i n t . We l l , h e l l , t h e re w a sn ' t

any way I'm going to do that. And so we kind of manoeuvered a

l i t t l e b i t .

MR. RUGGLES: And both you and Archie wound up on

t h e s t a f f ? ,

MR. ELLIS: Wel l , I went to D ick Gosfer (ph . sp . ) .

Me and Bob did, and at that t ime, Dick knew Archie. Archie

had been a Walter Reuther man al l of his l i fe. And he had

qui te a b i t o f organ iz ing go ing on. And we conv inced Dick to

t r ans fe r A r ch i e i n t o o rgan i z i ng r a the r t han se r v i ce r ep , wh i ch

made one more opening. And then we went to Walter, you know.
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1 We d i d i t a l l i n o n e d a y.

2 , W e w e n t t o D i c k fi r s t . A n d h e l l , h e k n e w A r c h i e ,

3 and he was pu t t i ng on guys in o rgan iz ing . And su re , he 'd

4 t ransfer h im. So then we went up to Wal ter, and had the

5 s o l u t i o n f o r W a l t e r . H e l l , A r c h i e d o n ' t h a v e t o q u i t , D i c k

6 w i l l pu t h im on the s ta f f , and Car te r says , Don , t hen , can

7 come to work for me.

8 A n d W a l t e r l o o k e d a t h i s w a t c h . I t w a s c l o s e t o

9 noon. And he sa id , we l l , why don ' t we break a t noon. And he

10 sa id , you come back a t one o 'c lock, and I ' l l g ive you my

11 a n s w e r .

1 2 S o w e t h o u g h t w e ' v e g o t i t a l l m a d e , y o u k n o w . A n d

13 we come back up at one o'clock, and Christ, Dick was up there

1 4 i n h i s o f fi c e . A n d a l l a t o n c e , t h e j o b h a d v a n i s h e d f o r

1 5 A r c h i e .

1 6 S o a t t h a t p o i n t , y o u k n o w , I w a s p r e t t y y o u n g , a n d

17 ' I sa id to h im, wha t the he l l . I don ' t have to work fo r the

1 8 j I n t e r n a t i o n a l U n i o n . I ' v e g o t a g o o d j o b . I ' m p r e s i d e n t o f a

19 local un ion, and I 'm the goddamned boss in the local un ion.

2 0 A n d I w a s n ' t b i t t e r . T h a t ' s a s f a r a s I ' m g o i n g . W e l l ,

21 anyway, Wal te r repented a t tha t t ime, and le t Arch ie go on .

22 And I came to work.

2 3 A t t h e p o i n t I c a m e t o w o r k , D a v e M c D o n a l d h a d b e e n

24 named Assis tant Regional Di rector, or I would have came to

25 wo rk as t he Ass i s tan t t o s ta r t w i t h . And so I wound up , I
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s e r v i c e d a l l t h e F i s h e r D i v i s i o n . I ' d n e v e r b e e n i n a F i s h e r

p lan t i n my l i f e . And I was used , then , k ind o f as a - - I

don't know what word to say, because I kind of assumed the

r o l e t h a t h a d g o t t e n C a r t e r e l e c t e d t o s t a r t w i t h . A n d t h e

s e r v i c e p a r t o f t h e j o b w a s t o " fi l l i n h e r e , " w h e r e v e r i t

was.

So I worked as a rep in Chevy, a service rep in

Chevy. And I worked as Fisher. And then we picked up a l l the

c a f e t e r i a w o r k e r s . We d i d n ' t h a v e t h e m . A n d I w a s t h e fi r s t

one to negot ia te the firs t agreement they had, and severa l

a f t e r t h a t . y \ \ i , ( t ' lH*'
And then Dave McDonald/was active --we all wereV /

active community-wise in ^t-he-'United Way, or the Old Red

Feather. And Dave rea l ly l i ked tha t k ind o f work , and Deek

Ly n c h ( p h . s p . ) r e s i g n e d . A t t h a t p o i n t , i t w a s t o o e a r l y i n

t ime to g ive i t d i rect ly to a labor guy. And so Dave became a

co-director of the Community Way. And of course he moved,

then I became the assistant . And I real ly came to work on

kind of the same basis, you know.

MR. RUGGLES: Here's a l ist pf Chapman's staff and

Carter 's proposed staff . Some of these, there wa-s a

compromise worked out . I 'm tak ing you back just a b i t , now.

The compromise was finally accepted by Carter, as it came down

f r o m R e u t h e r ' s o f fi c e .

MR. ELLIS: Wel l , Meyers , as I say, was t ransfer red

Ly came co worK c
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to organ iz ing . Le t 's see. Now, these down here be low were

not accura te , as far as Region 1c s ta f f .

MR. RUGGLES: Okay, we can just skip that.

M R . E L L I S : T h e y ' r e a c t i v e . T h e y w e r e s t a f f

members , bu t they were no t f rom l c . Meyers , E l l i s . Roger

To m e s ( p h . s p . ) f r o m B u i c k . H e w a s n ' t o n t h e s t a f f i n ' 5 1 . I

don ' t reca l l whether he ever was or not . Marv in But le r we put

on the s ta f f in '51 . He was an an t i -Reuther man. He go t

fi red f r om Bu i ck . Wa l t e r and - - I can ' t t h i nk o f h i s name

now. He was one of the firs t GM di rectors, a very prec ise guy

- - a r b i t r a t e d h i s c a s e a n d l o s t i t .

And of course, Martin was always convinced anyway

that they, you know, because he was ant i -Reuther, which is not

t r u e . I m e a n , I k n o w t h i s f o r a f a c t i t i s n ' t t r u e .

But anyway, But ler had been in the service. And he

came back, and his job was --he was put in the mai l . And he

got fired from Buick during some of the heydays. And so we

put him on the staff, or put his name on. Dave McDonald, on

the s ta ff . Mi tc j je l - l— came on the s ta f f , ins tead o f Cra in (ph.

sp. ) , f rom Chevy.

Lou Tanner, from Chevy, and Ed Cameron were both in/ I
the same locals, and worked out a compromise, and one of them

had to leave. And so Walter took Ed Cameron and put him in at

GM Department. Everet t Francis, he wor l:kec rorChapm^n.
Everett Francis had to go to Detroit./\Hans Larsen (phr. sp.
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1 stayed. Russell White went into Detroit/^ Frank Corser (ph.

2 sp.) stayed. These are Lansing guys.

3 S o m y r e c o l l e c t i o n w a s , W e s t o n w e n t b a c k i n t o B u i c k .

4 Later we put him back on the staff. But those who survived,

5 that Walter said you had to keep, was Hans Larsen, it was

6 Frank Corser, Lou Tanner or Cameron. And so we kept Tanner.

7 That's the only ones we kept. Russ White went into Detroit,

8 t o o .

9 ! M R . R U G G L E S : C a r t e r ' s s t a f f w a s l a b e l e d b y s o m e

10 people as being a left wing staff.

1 1 I M R . E L L I S : N o t t r u e .

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d t h i s f a c t i o n a l i s m s e e m s t o h a v e

13 been building up for years. In 1949 there was a newsletter

14 put out. It was peddled here around 659 local, called The

15 Union Builder. It speaks of the Reuther machine, and it 's a

16 very anti-Reuther publication. They're attacking Chapman, who

17 was Reuther's regional director, an appointee of Reuther's.

1 8 D o y o u r e c a l l d o c u m e n t s l i k e t h i s b e i n g c i r c u l a t e d

19 typ ica l o f the t ime?

2 0 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h , i t w a s t y p i c a l . C h r y s l e r , y o u ' d

21 read one, on the left hand, as you're going into the plant,

22 and a guy would give you one in the right hand that was an

23 answer to it, you know.

2 4 B u t m y fi r s t c o n v e n t i o n w a s i n ' 4 7 , a n d w e e l e c t e d

2 5 Chapman. And Chapman really was not Walter's candidate, but

r
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1 he would have been Walter's candidate out of the two who were

2 r u n n i n g a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e .

3 M R . R U G G L E S : W h o w a s t h e o t h e r o n e ?

4 M R . E L L I S : M a r v i n B u t l e r . M a r v i n B u t l e r . A n d

5 Marv in is the one that we put on the staff who had been fired

6 f r om Bu i ck . And I vo ted aga ins t Ma rv i n , and vo ted f o r

7 Chapman. And o f course, I never conversed wi th Wal ter, bu t

8 I 'm ce r ta in , you know, tha t Wa l te r - - I mean , tha t was the

9 r igh t th ing to do , as fa r as Wal te r was concerned .

1 0 I h a v e t o g o b a c k . I f t h e r e e v e r w a s o n e p e r s o n

11 that we did agree on, it would have been Chapman, but we did

12 no t do i t by h im and I ta l k ing abou t i t . You know, because

13 when I wen t t o t he conven t i on , i n t ha t pa r t i cu l a r conven t i on ,

14 they had a l ready counted my vote for But ler. And someone

15 su rp r i s ing in my own loca l un ion . Tha t k ind o f hu r t me a

1 6 l i t t l e b i t .

1 7 | M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y j u s t a s s u m e d y o u w e r e a B u t l e r

18 man?

1 9 I M R . E L L I S : T h e y a s s u m e d t h a t I w a s g o i n g t o v o t e

2 0 f o r M a r v i n B u t l e r . B u t I d i d n ' t . I h a d n o i n t e n t i o n s o f

2 1 v o t i n g f o r h i m a t a l l .

2 2 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d a n y o n e a t t h e c o n v e n t i o n a p p r o a c h

23 you, t ry to get you to switch to Chapman?

2 4 M R . E L L I S : O h , n o . I w a s l i n e d u p w i t h I r e n e

25 Mitchel l and with everybody, as far as Chapman was concerned,
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1 f r om the l oca l , w i t h t he excep t i on t ha t t he re we re doub ts ,

2 n a t u r a l l y, i n Wa l t e r ' s m i n d , w h e r e i n t h e h e l l I w a s g o i n g t o

3 be. You know, he didn't know me. I was new, and we knew one

4 a n o t h e r, b u t n o t t o t h e p o i n t o f b e i n g p e r s o n a l l y i n v o l v e d t o o

5 m u c h .

6 H i s p e r s o n a l i n v o l v e m e n t , i n o u r l o c a L ^ j A n i o n ,

7 Wal te r ' s , was I rene Mi tche l l , and McLucas , and Speck , /peop le

8 t h a t a r e t h i s g r o u p , s e e . A n d t h a t w a s j u s t a l i t t l e b i t

9 b e f o r e m y t i m e .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : Y o u r v o t e i n ' 4 7 w a s q u i t e i m p o r t a n t ,

11 though, because Reuther had been struggl ing for a year wi th an

12 execu t i ve board tha t wou ldn ' t back h im.

1 3 M R . E L L I S : Y e s . T h a t ' s r i g h t . T h a t ' s r i g h t .

1 4 M R . R U G G L E S : H e h a d t o t u r n t h i n g s a r o u n d , a n d

1 5 C h a p m a n ' s v i c t o r y w a s r a t h e r s i g n i fi c a n t .

1 6 M R . E L L I S : I t i s . W e l l , I t h i n k - -

1 7 : M R . R U G G L E S : A l o n g w i t h a l o t o f o t h e r s .

1 8 M R . E L L I S : I t ' s t r u e , b u t b e i n g o u r r e g i o n w a s - - I

19 don ' t know where we were a t tha t par t icu lar t ime, but we 'd

20 always been a big region. And we were always up around third

2 1 o r f o u r t h i n s i z e .

2 2 I A n d y o u ' r e d a m n e d r i g h t i t w a s , b e c a u s e h a d B u t l e r

23 got e lec ted as reg iona l d i rec tor, you know, he wou ld not have

24 suppor ted Wal ter. No way, because in h is mind, he was

25 conv inced tha t Wa l te r de l ibe ra te ly so ld h im down the road .

43



1 A n d t h a t i s n o t t r u e .

2 , I c a l l B u t l e r B u t c h , I k n o w a l l t h e s e s t a f f g u y s

3 f rom way back . There 's a lo t o f them I he lped th rough Car te r,

4 and la te r th rough Pa te rson , I pu t them a l l to work , and then

5 m y s e l f . S o I k n o w t h e s e g u y s . A n d , w e l l , I g o t a l o n g r e a l

6 good w i th a l l o f the guys . Me and Bu tch were g rea t f r i ends .

7 And he and I d i d no t ag ree , na tu ra l l y. I neve r wou ld ag ree

8 t h a t Wa l t e r w o u l d d e l i b e r a t e l y d o a n y t h i n g t o g e t r i d o f a

9 g u y .

1 0 i M R . R U G G L E S : W h a t o c c u r r e d t h a t m a d e B u t l e r t h i n k

11 that Wal ter had so ld h im down the r iver?

1 2 | M R . E L L I S : W e l l , h e h a d a g r i e v a n c e a n d p r o c e d u r e

13 th rough the g r ievance procedure . And he went to the h ighes t

1 4 s t e p o f t h e l e v e l .

1 5 | M R . R U G G L E S : B u t l e r d i d ?

1 6 I M R . E L L I S : B u t l e r d i d .

1 7 M R . E L L I S : B u t l e r . A n d W a l t e r a n d - - t h i s n a m e

1 8 j u s t fl i p p e d i n a n d fl i p p e d o u t o f m y m i n d - - p e r s o n a l l y, t h e

1 9 t w o o f t h e m , a r b i t r a t e d h i s c a s e i n f r o n t o f t h e u m p i r e . A n d

2 0 t h e y l o s t i t . B e c a u s e , n u m b e r o n e , M a r v i n B u t l e r w a s g u i l t y

21 as he l l . He had a w i l d - ca t s t r i ke , and he was t he l eade r o f

22 the goddamned th ing.

2 3 B u t y o u c o u l d n e v e r g e t B u t l e r , o u t o f h i s m i n d , t o

24 say that they didn' t do as good a job as they could on these

25 ag reemen ts . And he ' s fu l l o f c rap . You know, he 'd dead now.
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B u t I t o l d h i m i n a l l t h a t t i m e , y o u ' r e f u l l o f c r a p . Yo u

d idn ' t have a g r i evance to s ta r t w i th .

N o r m a l l y, i n l a t e r t i m e , h e l l , i t w o u l d n e v e r g o t u p

to umpi re to s tar t w i th . You know, there were no fac ts we

c o u l d m e r i t d o i n g i t . A n d t h e y d i d . T h e y t o o k i t , t o t h e

highest step through the gr ievance procedure as they could go.

A n d t h e y l o s t i t .

I know, when we elected Patterson, I was a candidate

when Bob quit, as far as the staff was concerned, to become

di rec tor. And we went to Pat terson, and asked h im. We'd beat

Pat twice. And then we went to Pat in 1959, when Bob

res igned. I went to Pat and just asked h im how he 'd l ike to

be reg iona l d i rec to r o f F l i n t . And I guess he though t I mus t

have fell on my head or something, because we'd defeated him

t w i c e .

sp.And I took Lou Tanner and Charlie! Zie (ph.. sd . ) from

Chevy -- they're both dead now -- and he told us that i f we

had any more jokes, we could come back some other day, you

know, and I 'm going home. I guess we thought , wel l , Chr is t ,

they must th ink I 'm nuts .
But anyway, on the way home, we stopped and had a

few drinks, you know, and Christ , these guys from Chevy, they

were a pretty obnoxious, rough bunch of guys, you know. And

they sa id , Jesus Chr is t , you want h im fo r d i rec to r, Ho ly

Christ, the dummy, we want to give him the job, you know, the
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1 hell with him. But anyway, to make a long story short, I

2 called Pat the next day, and convinced him I wanted to come

3 back and talk with him.

4 I c a m e b a c k w i t h m y s e l f , a n d l e f t h i m h o m e . A n d I

5 convinced him that, you know, it wasn't bullshit, because we

6 had the delegates already elected. We had to have a special

7 convention. Hell, the ones that had voted for Carter were all

8 ready, you know.

9 i A n d s o I c o n v i n c e d h i m t h a t w e r e a l l y m e a n t i t . A n d

10 so he agreed to be the candidate. Of course, I'm positive now

11 he only agreed after the whole staff was -- Walter insisted we

12 all come down to Detroit, the whole staff, and meet with him

13 and Pat. And, you know, after you give Patterson his word,

14 Walter says, that's fine, now, you know, you're a practical

15 politician, you take off your arm and sign with blood.

1 6 A n d a t t h a t m e e t i n g , B u t l e r w a s p r e s e n t , n a t u r a l l y .

17 And so each one of us had their l i t t le discussion. I t started

18 with Carter. He went with us. He had resigned, but he went

19 with us. And then me. And it went around the staff. And it

20 got to Butler, you know, and Butler wouldn't look at Walter,

21 but Butler says, my candidate is Ell is.

2 2 | A n d t h a t ' s t h e o n l y o n e t h a t h a d s a i d a n y t h i n g .

23 Everybody else was for Patterson. Walter just skipped right

24 on. You know, one out of the whole staff don't bother Walter

25 any. And he got to the next guy, and when he did, I said,
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1 j u s t a m i n u t e Wa l t e r . A n d I s a i d t o B u t l e r , I s a y s , B u t l e r , I

2 can ' t be your cand ida te . You know, there a in ' t no goddamned

3 way I can be the candidate, because Patterson is my candidate.

4 | A n d t h i s s t a f f w a s a t e a m . A n d B u t l e r s a y s , o k a y .

5 We l l , P a t t e r s o n ' s a l l r i g h t . A n d t h a t ' s w h e r e P a t c a m e i n .

6 Pat then ran, and we d idn ' t have any prob lem e lect ing Pat in

7 ' '59.

8 | A n d t h e n t h e f o l l o w i n g c o n v e n t i o n , i t w a s a s h o r t

9 t ime . I don ' t know how long be tween the spec ia l conven t ion

10 Pa t was re -e lec ted . And o f cou rse , he was re -e lec ted un t i l he

11 had the s t roke and cou ldn ' t run aga in .

1 2 T h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e , I w a s , o f c o u r s e , h i s

1 3 a s s i s t a n t a t t h a t t i m e . A n d h e d i d n ' t c h a n g e i t a f t e r h e w a s

1 4 e l e c t e d . H e l e f t m e a s a s s i s t a n t . A n d s o t h e s t a f f i n s i s t e d

1 5 a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e t h a t I b e t h e c a n d i d a t e f o r t h e

1 6 d i r e c t o r t h e n , i n 1 9 7 0 , a n d s o I r a n i n 1 9 7 0 u n t i l I r e t i r e d

1 7 i n ' 8 3 .

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t m e t a k e y o u b a c k t o t h e p e r i o d

19 when you jus t go t on Car te r ' s s ta f f , and tha t per iod when h is

2 0 s t a f f w a s l a b e l e d " l e f t w i n g e r . "

2 1 | T h i s f a c t i o n a l i s m , y o u m e n t i o n e d a f e w m i n u t e s t h a t

22 lc has a lways been sor t o f a separa te rad ica l , o r rough-and-

23 tumb le reg ion . Cou ld you desc r ibe those cond i t i ons , and why

24 i t happened that way? Why lc was so separate?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I r e a l l y d o n ' t k n o w . T h e p e o p l e
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1 i n l c a r e a l l l e a d e r s h i p . T h e y ' r e q u i t e v o c a l , a n d t h e y ' r e

2 q u i t e i n d e p e n d e n t o f o n e a n o t h e r. T h e y ' r e n o t l i k e o t h e r

3 reg ions . I n o the r reg ions , you know, you be long to a g roup o f

4 people, and there's no mummers. Even though we belong to a

5 group of people, in a caucus, we mummered a hel l of a lot, you

6 know. We a lways had bet ter ideas than anyone e lse, a t the

7 loca l l eve l , even though we were toge the r.

8 W e a l w a y s h a d a f r e e e x p r e s s i o n , b e i n g a b l e t o s a y

9 wha t you wan t , o r k i c k he l l ou t o f one ano the r. No t t o t he

1 0 p o i n t o f , i f i t w a s i d e a s a n d c o n t r a c t n e g o t i a t i o n s , o r

11 w h a t e v e r .

1 2 A n d o t h e r r e g i o n s j u s t d i d n ' t s e e m t o b e t h a t w a y .

13 Once whatever the i r p rob lems were , e i the r the reg iona l

14 d i r ec to r o r Wa l te r o r one o f t hem wou ld say, "Tha t ' s i t , " and

1 5 t h a t ' s i t .

1 6 W e e x e r c i s e d , I g u e s s , w h a t w e w o u l d c a l l o u r

17 democ ra t i c r i gh t o f be ing a pa r t o f dec i s i on -mak ing . And we

1 8 r a i s e d a l o t o f h e l l u p u n t i l a t t h e p o i n t t h a t y o u h a v e t o

1 9 fi n a l i z e i t . A n d t h e n t h e g r u m b l i n g s t o p p e d , w e ' d fi n a l i z e

2 0 i t . And once i t 's final , we'd grumble some more, even amongst

2 1 o u r s e l v e s . A n d i t h a s n ' t c h a n g e d , e v e n t o d a y.

2 2 j I t ' s n o t a s b a d a s i t u s e d t o b e , b u t e v e r s i n c e B o b

23 - - we l l , go ing back to the ques t i on , you know, you cons ide r i t

2 4 a s a n a n t i - R e u t h e r s t a f f m e m b e r. T h a t i s n ' t t r u e , y o u k n o w.

25 Because I had a long d iscuss ion w i th Car te r, p r io r to h im
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1 b e c o m i n g a c a n d i d a t e . I t o l d h i m t h a t h e c o u l d n ' t s t i l l p l a y

2 t h i s r o l e a n d b e a n a n t i - R e u t h e r. I f y o u ' r e e l e c t e d o n t h e

3 b o a r d , y o u c a n ' t j u s t b e " a n t i . "

4 Y o u h a v e a r i g h t , i n t h e p r o c e s s o f d o i n g t h i n g s a s

5 a board member, you have a r ight to your say. But you can ' t

6 se rve as reg iona l d i r ec to r and j us t be l abe led on eve ry th i ng

7 tha t comes up . You can ' t be tha t , you know.

8 A n d s o , i t d i d n ' t r e a l l y m a k e t h a t m u c h d i f f e r e n c e

9 to Bob. And so when he went on the staff , whi le he was not

10 Cons idered a p ro -Reuther, he never d id any th ing . And the

11 s t a f f g u y s , w i t h t h e e x c e p t i o n o f M a r v i n B u t l e r, w e r e a l l p r o -

1 2 R e u t h e r. A n d i t ' s L a r s e n , C h r i s t , g o t s h o p i n o f m y m o t h e r ' s

1 3 l o c a l , a n d w e t r i e d t o fi r e H a n s . W e c o u l d n ' t . A n d , l o o k i n g

14 back , thank God we cou ldn ' t Chr i s t , he worked w i th th i s un ion

15 and fo r Wa l te r, whe re he d idn ' t ge t pa id , as a s ta f f guy.

1 6 I A n d s o w e r e a l l y d i d n o t h a v e w h a t y o u ' d r e a l l y c a l l

17 ant i -Reuther s ta f f . None o f them were . And so Bob was not an

18 ant i-Reuther board member. The problem was that he was looked

19 on as an anti- board member, because he had always supported

20 Add is and the g roup p r io r. And wh i l e he neve r d id any th ing i n

21 the reg ion , he cou ldn ' t have i f he had wan ted to . Bu t he

22 never evidenced that he would want to.

2 3 I t ' s k i n d o f a s h a m e , i n t h a t s e n s e , b e c a u s e B o b w a s

2 4 a v e r y i n t e l l e c t u a l g u y, a y o u n g g u y. A n d I t h i n k a l l t h e

2 5 t i m e s h e s e r v e d , h e w a s s i t t i n g i n t h a t k i n d o f a s p o t . I
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th ink he cou ld have done i t a l i t t l e d i f fe ren t , you know, done

a l o t be t t e r, and I t h i nk he j us t accep ted i t and I don ' t

th ink he said a hel l of a lot on the board, because they

always looked at him.

And back then, there were other board members that

had come from that kind of a background. So he had very few

f r iends on the board , Bob d id . Bu t he rea l l y never d id

any th ing tha t you cou ld ca l l , th rough the p ress o r any th ing

else, that he was ant i-Reuther man.

MR. RUGGLES: But this independent streak just grows

out o f the h is to ry o f l c . When we speak o f l c , a re we rea l ly

t a l k i n g o f F l i n t , t h o u g h , p r i m a r i l y ?

M R . E L L I S : N o . We l l - -

MR. RUGGLES: I mean, I know geographical ly, i t 's

much larger.

MR. ELLIS: Yeah.

MR. RUGGLES: I t 's 11 counties.

MR. ELLIS: We d id s tar t w i th , but then Lans ing

began to slowly, gradual ly expand. And we never had Jackson,

Ad r i an and Ba t t l e C re^^un t i l t he 1959 conven t i on , a f t e r t he

spec ia l conven t i on .

Thefti Macauley (ph. sp.) , we had seven international

board members'vin Michigan. And Macauley had been, Christ, I

guess the regionaT~director in the area, he had ever s ince,

you know, they had a ward.
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1 A n d s o w h e n h e r e t i r e d , w e t o o k M a c a u l e y ' s r e g i o n .

2 Really, we did not have use for seven board members out of

3 Michigan. So we took Macauley's region and put it into all

4 the existing other than Detroit regions, and into our region.

5 And so there we picked up Jackson, Adrian and Battle Creek.

6 L a n s i n g a l w a y s w a s i n o u r a r e a , F l i n t a n d L a n s i n g .

7 But Flint had the membership. We had seven local unions, and

8 GM locals in the city of Flint. And so nobody could get

9 elected. Nobody but Patterson. Of course, he came from 652,

10 Oldsmobile. And he wouldn't have gotten elected, hadn't,

11 real ly, the staff and I given him the job to start with.

1 2 O f c o u r s e , o n c e h e ' s e l e c t e d , h e w a s a v e r y

13 knowledgeable man, and a very dedicated man. And then he came

14 out o f Lans ing, too. So that , then, k ind o f so l id ified F l in t

15 and Lansing.

1 6 B u t t h e r e i s a d i s t i n c t i o n y e t i n o u r r e g i o n . W e

17 have what we called Flint, and then we have the western part

18 of the region, you know. That goes to even my retirement

19 party. I've never been one for too much fanfare of anything,

20 and I really did not want to have one. And then they

21 convinced me, well , they're going to have i t , i t 's just going

22 to be small affair, just the staff and maybe some officers.
2 3 A n d t h e n t h e y w o u n d u p b y m a k i n g i t r e g i o n a l - w i d e .

22 And at that point, the western end of the region says, we're

25 not going to have one. We're going to have one for Ellis. So
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1 I ' d h a v e t w o .

2 | S o I h a d o n e i n L a n s i n g , f o r L a n s i n g , J a c k s o n ,

3 Adr ian and Bat t le Creek. And then I had the o ther one here

4 f r o m F l i n t .

5 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d y o u e n j o y t h e m b o t h ?

6 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I d i d , w i t h t h e e x c e p t i o n o f , y o u

7 k n o w, a f t e r I g o t t h r o u g h t h e fi r s t o n e , I t h o u g h t t h e s e c o n d

8 one was murder. I t wou ld have been be t te r i f we 'd jus t had

9 one , bu t t hey wou ldn ' t do t ha t . The l eade rsh ip says no .

1 0 I M R . R U G G L E S : I t ' s a h u g e r e g i o n , s t r e t c h i n g a l l t h e

11 w a y f r o m O t i s v i l l e , n o r t h e a s t o f F l i n t , o n d o w n t o t h e l i t t l e

12 town of Bronson, c lose to the Ohio border?

1 3 I M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

1 4 j M R . R U G G L E S : T h a t ' s 1 0 0 , 0 0 0 m e m b e r s ?

1 5 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . A t o n e t i m e , I t h i n k o u r h i g h e s t ,

16 I th ink , was up to about 120,000.

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : Y o u h a v e a b o u t 8 1 l o c a l s ?

1 8 M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : T h a t ' s a w h a l e o f a r e g i o n t o s e r v i c e .

2 0 M R . E L L I S : R e a l l y , i t w o u l d h a v e b e e n , i f y o u t a k e

2 1 a l o o k a t t h e m a k e - u p o f t h e u n i o n i n d i f f e r e n t r e g i o n s . B u t

22 a rea-w ide , we a re the c loses t a rea-w ide reg ion , c loses t to one

23 another o f any other reg ion in the UAW, you know, fur thest

f rom one point . So normal ly, everybody would work out of

2 1 F l i n t , y o u k n o w.
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But that d idn' t make any sense. You work out of

F l i n t , even go ing f r om F l i n t t o Lans ing , wha t t he he l l , you ' re

an hour and a hal f to get there. An hour and a hal f to get

back . And you can ' t rea l l y serv ice a membersh ip in tha t

sense.

So rea l ly, to serv ice a membership, you 've got to

p rac t i ca l l y be where you ' re no t on the road a l l the t ime , o r

s tay ing over, as far as cost and so for th . And so we

determined the amount of service jobs, you know, out of each

un i t , F l i n t , Lans ing , Jackson , Ad r i an and Ba t t l e C reek .

And so when we put staff guys on, we put them on

f rom those areas, and then they were in da i ly contact , jus t

l i k e w e a r e h e r e , w i t h a l l t h e o n e s i n F l i n t . L a n s i n g , t h e

same way. You know, three service guys in Lansing to service

grievances. And you know, within 3 0 minutes, they can get out

to any one of the i r p lants . Same th ing in Jackson, Adr ian and

Bat t le Creek .

And so , ou r i n te rna t iona l reps a re in c lose r con tac t

w i th the loca l un ion leadersh ip , and the loca l un ion

membersh ip , than any o ther reg ion. They ' re c loser connected

with them.

MR. RUGGLES: Do the regional l ines, as they're

drawn, make sense to you, or would you rather see some

changes?
MR. ELL IS : We l l , t hey 've g radua l l y been k ind o f , I
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guess you ca l l t he re ge r r ymande r i ng a l i t t l e b i t , f r om the o ld

2 d a y s . T h e y g r a d u a l l y a r e d o i n g t h i s . Ye s , t h e y c o u l d s t a n d

3 some revampment yet. We have too many vice-presidents

4 p o s i t i o n s . T h e l a s t c o n v e n t i o n , w e d i d n ' t fi l l o n e o f t h e m ,

5 a n d t h e i n t e n t i o n o f n o t fi l l i n g a n o t h e r o n e .

6 ' Y o u k n o w , v i e n e e d t o g e t a l i t t l e b i t s m a l l e r . A n d

7 t h e f u t u r e , i n l e s s o r g a n i z a t i o n a l t h i n g s , i t ' s g o i n g t o

8 con t inue , un less you can p ick up a d i f fe ren t segment , you

9 know, l i ke the banks and hosp i ta l s and un i ve rs i t i es and th ings

1 0 l i k e t h a t .

1 1 B u t t h e b l u e c o l l a r w o r k e r s , a n d r e a l l y t h e a v e r a g e

1 2 u n s k i l l e d w o r k i s d i s a p p e a r i n g i n t h e a u t o m o t i v e i n d u s t r y. S o

1 3 w e ' r e g o i n g t o g e t s m a l l e r . N o t j u s t o u r r e g i o n , b u t t h e

1 4 w h o l e u n i o n , t h e I n t e r n a t i o n a l U n i o n .

1 5 S o a t t h i s p r e s e n t t i m e , w e r e a l l y d o n ' t n e e d s i x

1 6 r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r s i n M i c h i g a n . T h e y ' r e c l o s e e n o u g h i n

1 7 D e t r o i t t o c o m b i n e a c o u p l e o f t h e r e g i o n s . A n d i t s t i l l

18 won ' t be up to 120,000 people , see. And that can be serv iced

1 9 o u t o f o n e o f fi c e , r a t h e r t h a n h a v e f o u r d i f f e r e n t r e g i o n a l

2 0 d i r e c t o r s .

2 1 A n d t h a t w i l l c o m e a b o u t , b u t i t ' s t o u g h b e c a u s e

2 2 w h e n y o u s t a r t t r y i n g t o d r a w t h e l i n e s d i f f e r e n t , a n d p u t

23 merge , you run in to guys tha t have been the re a l l o f the i r

2 4 l i f e . A n d s o y o u ' v e g o t t o w a i t u n t i l h e d i e s o r r e t i r e s .

2 5 A n d s o w e c o u l d h a v e d o n e t h e w h o l e t h i n g a t t h e
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1 last convention. Me and Doug and Gerber (ph. sp.) and all

2 these guys. We could have done that at that point, but we

3 couldn't get enough togetherness on the board to do it without

4 a h e l l o f a fi g h t .

5 A n d s o w e k i n d o f l a i d t h e g r o u n d w o r k . W e g o t r i d

6 of one vice-president, and the next convention, I don't think

7 we - - in other words, if something happens to one, we're not

8 g o i n g t o fi l l t h e j o b .

9 A n d t h e s a m e t h e o r y i s b e h i n d t h e s c e n e s . A n d a f t e r

10 Tamasi (ph. sp.) ret ires in Ohio -- see, there's three

11 regional directors in Ohio -- kind of merging away some of it.

12 We've got to wait, I guess, until some of the old-time

13 polit icians die. Just l ike they say they want to do away with

14 F l in t , and put i t in w i th Id .

1 5 I t w o n ' t h a p p e n , b e c a u s e o f t h e a m o u n t o f m e m b e r s h i p

16 we 've got in F l in t . They don ' t l i ke to do that . But

17 eventually they're going to have to.

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : I m e n t i o n i t b e c a u s e I t h i n k i t w a s

19 during Patterson's tenure as regional director, there was a

20 suggestion that Lapeer be brought in to lc because so many

21 F l in t workers l ive in Lapeer, and po l i t ica l ly, i t was

22 difficult to run a good poli t ical campaign, since they were

23 across the l ine in another region.

2 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . L a p e e r i s I d .

2 5 I M R . R U G G L E S : T h e r e w a s a f e e l i n g t h a t M e r r e l l i ,

55



1 espec ia l ly, would ob ject to that .

2 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h . W e l l , t h a t ' s t h e w h o l e

3 problem. The past directors, see. Now, of course, George is

4 retired now, and Tamasi wil l be retir ing at the next

5 convention, from Ohio. And Frereman (ph. sp.) from Id is

6 going to qui t . So as the old-t imers qui t , I 'm sure that

7 they're going to find some way to get this job done.

8 : B u t w e c a n s e r v i c e , i n t h e s t a t e o f M i c h i g a n , w e

9 could service the membership just as effectively with at least

10 one less regional director. Of course, it would have to come

11 out of Detroit. And you know what that's going to be.

1 2 I B u t t h e y ' r e g o i n g t o h a v e t o b e f o r c e d t o ,

13 economically, down the road, to get it back in l ine. As they

14 decrease, we're going to have to find some ways, really, to

15 kind of decrease.

1 6 W e a l r e a d y h a v e f o u n d w a y s . W e ' v e a l r e a d y h a d t o

17 decrease staff throughout the Internat ional Union. And that 's

18 going to cont inue.

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t m e g o b a c k t o t h e t i m e t h a t y o u

20 were assistant d i rector, or administrat ive assistant - - I had

21 two d i fferent t i t les for you there in '54. One of our

22 documents showed you as assistant director, and then the other

23 l is ted you as an administ rat ive assis tant . I 'm not sure i f

24 there was much difference.

2 5 B u t I d o n ' t w a n t t o k e e p c o m i n g b a c k t o t h a t i s s u e
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1 of communism, except it keeps popping up. In 1954, there were

2 four members that were discharged by GM Flint for falsifying

3 their work records. But the bel ief on the part of a lot of

4 people was that they were communists. The names Trackinberg

5 (ph. sp.), Falk (ph. sp.), Engles (ph. sp.) and VanDirdios

6 (ph. sp.), I believe that's the way they pronounced their

7 names, were the four.

8 B o b C a r t e r , i n f a c t , w a s s u b p o e n a e d b y t h e H o u s e

9 Unamerican Activities Committee. There was a congressman

10 named Clarty (ph. sp.) who you probably recall raising a big

11 stink about that t ime. Could you tell us about your role, and

12 the role of Region lc in that issue?

1 3 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , t h o s e n a m e s , a r e f a m i l i a r , b u t

14 it 's a long t ime ago. But the people, what you'd real ly cal l

15 people connected to the left wing came as a result of the war.

16 And some of them were working in the plants, you know. And so

17 i t was pretty rough.

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : T h i s w a s i n ' 5 4 . T h i s w o u l d b e r i g h t

19 after the Korean War was over.

2 0 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s r i g h t .

2 1 M R . R U G G L E S : O k a y .

; 2 M R . E L L I S : B u t t h e a f t e r m a t h o f t h a t t h i n g i s t h a t

2.3 if any of these guys in local union positions, in a local

2 4 union, you know, where a guy is just coming back, and

2:5 politically had been expounded a long time before, and he was
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1 working in the plants, and then the Korean War is over, and

2 Christ, guys are coming back from the war, and service, and

3 going back into those plants.

4 I t w a s r o u g h f o r t h o s e g u y s , J e s u s C h r i s t , t o

5 protect themselves. People get hyster ical . Al l those names,

6 they were connected locally.

7 M R . R U G G L E S : I d o n ' t h a v e t h e l o c a l t h e y b e l o n g e d

8 t o . I t j u s t s a i d G M - F l i n t .

9 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I ' m p r e t t y s u r e y o u ' l l fi n d i t

10 would have come out of Chevy and Buick.

1 1 M R . R U G G L E S : I t h i n k y o u ' r e r i g h t . T h e B u i c k p l a n t

12 and Chevy, Fisher 1.

1 3 I M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . 5 8 1 .

1 4 M R . R U G G L E S : W h y d o y o u a c k n o w l e d g e t h a t s o

1 5 r e a d i l y ?

1 6 | M R . E L L I S : W e l l , a s I s a i d e a r l i e r , w e ' v e g o t s o m e

17 retired people who really played a tremendous role in this,

18 and are ret i red now, and st i l l l iv ing. And there 's no

19 question about it, they were not only anti-Reuther, and pro-

20 Thomas and Addis, but there's also no question that they

21 either belonged to the Communist Party, or belonged to the

22 Trotsky Party, or were socialists. You know, there were no

23 bones about i t .

2 4 | B e c a u s e i n t h e i r b i d , r i g h t a f t e r t h e w a r , t h e y w e r e

25 pretty strong in these local unions. You know, i t don't take
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1 a he l l o f a lo t o f numbers , and i f you sp l i t them up in each

2 l o c a l .

3 A n d t h e y v i e d f o r a l l t h e s e d i f f e r e n t l o c a l s p o t s .

4 And once they were branded, in that sense, you know a lef t

5 winger, and a left winger was an ism, you know, communism, al l

6 the isms were the le f t w ingers . And they had no bones tha t

7 they were members of ei ther the Communist Party. Cap Kenny

8 (ph . sp . ) f r om Bu i ck was .

9 W h a t t h e h e l l ? C o m m u n i s t s . A n d h e ' d r u n . A n d h e ' d

1 0 t e l l t h e m t h a t . Yo u k n o w ? A n d s o a f t e r t h e K o r e a n Wa r, i t

11 got to where anyone who was real ly tagged, and who had real ly

1 2 p u b l i c l y a d m i t t e d , o r e v e n w a s a s s o c i a t e d , i t w a s n ' t s a f e f o r

1 3 t h e m i n t h e p l a n t s . I t r e a l l y w a s n ' t . T h e y g o t h e l l k i c k e d

1 4 o u t o f t h e m .

1 5 A n d t h e y w e n t t o t h e p o l i c e , a n d C h r i s t , t h e p o l i c e

16 cou ldn ' t bodygua rd somebody a l l t he t ime . Ch r i s t , t hey 'd come

1 7 i n o u r o f fi c e . A n d t h e y w e r e p r e t t y r o u g h t i m e s b a c k t h e n .

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : D o y o u t h i n k t h a t C l a r t y c o m m i t t e e , o r

19 the House Unamerican Act iv i t ies Commit tee was a wi tch-hunt of

2 0 s o r t s ?

2 1 M R . E L L I S : I t h i n k i n t h a t s e n s e . I t g o e s b a c k t o

22 McCar thy. Sure I th ink i t was , because McCar thy was a pre t ty

23 popular senator way, way back.

2 4 M R . R U G G L E S : F o r a w h i l e .

2 5 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s w h a t I m e a n t . A n d h e l l , y o u
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1 k n o w, t h a t ' s a l l h e w a s d o i n g w a s , r e a l l y, w i t c h - h u n t i n g . A n d

2 i t w a s h i s f u l l j o b . A n d y e a h , I t h i n k i t w a s a n o u t c o m e o f

3 t h e n a t i o n a l p o l i t i c s .

4 M R . R U G G L E S : I f o u n d a w o r k r e p o r t o f y o u r s , f r o m

5 1955. I was impressed wi th the amount o f work that you put in

6 in the course o f a shor t per iod f rom May to October o f '55.

7 Do you reca l l tha t? You must have run yourse l f ragged runn ing

8 a round t he reg ion . I 'm j us t wonde r i ng , was t ha t a no rma l

9 r o u t i n e t h a t C a r t e r r e q u i r e d y o u t o fi l e w o r k r e p o r t s ?

1 0 M R . E L L I S : I d o n ' t k n o w w h e r e i t c a m e f r o m . Y o u

11 might be bringing up something new to me, here, now. Oh, now

1 2 t h i s w a s f r o m t h e i n t e r n a t i o n a l e x e c u t i v e b o a r d . T h i s w a s

1 3 f r o m t h e p r e s i d e n t ' s o f fi c e .

1 4 P e r i o d i c a l l y , y o u w o u l d h a v e t o fi l e , a s a r e g i o n a l

1 5 d i r e c t o r , a w o r k r e p o r t o n a l l t h e s t a f f . Yo u k n o w, w h a t

16 the i r ass ignments and wha t the i r work repor t was . And o f

1 7 c o u r s e , i n ' 5 4 , I w a s t h e A s s i s t a n t R e g i o n a l D i r e c t o r a t t h a t

1 8 p a r t i c u l a r t i m e . P l u s t h e f a c t t h a t I w a s t h e s w i n g g u y, I

1 9 g u e s s y o u c o u l d s a y. I d o n ' t c a r e w h a t i t w a s , s e r v i c e .

2 0 S o j u s t d u r i n g t h a t p e r i o d o f t i m e , t h e r e h a d b e e n a

2 1 c o u p l e o f i l l n e s s e s , t o o , i n s o m e o f o u r s t a f f g u y s . A n d I

2 2 h a d p i c k e d u p a l o t o f t h e i r a s s i g n m e n t , t o o . B u t a s

2 3 a s s i s t a n t d i r e c t o r, y o u r j o b w a s t o d o e v e r y t h i n g t h a t t h e

24 d i rector was supposed to do. And leave h im t ime to do the

25 th ings that he was supposed to do, because they ' re t ime-
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1 consuming.

2 M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u l o o k e d l i k e y o u r e a l l y e a r n e d y o u r

3 pay here.

4 M R . E L L I S : B e c a u s e e a c h j o b y o u m o v e t o i s a

5 different operation, and each one takes more time. So the

6 assistant director, you know, you talk about 24 hours a day,

7 and seven days a week. We used to say, Christ, we could do

8 good if we had a 36-hour day and had an eight-day work week.

9 Y o u r e a l l y d i d n ' t n o t i c e i t w o r k i n g . I m e a n , t o t h e

10 extent that, well, it just seemed to me that there's not a

11 hell of a lot of difference. Once you get involved in a

12 un ion, you ' re invo lved. And i f you ' re in e lect ive pos i t ions,

13 if you're going to stay elected, you've got to stay involved.

14 And that's seven days a week, and that's 24 hours a day, or

15 you don ' t l as t .

1 6 I M R . R U G G L E S : P r e t t y r u g g e d s c h e d u l e .

1 7 I M R . E L L I S : S o m e p e o p l e c a n h a n d l e i t . S o m e c a n ' t .

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : We l l , b y 1 9 5 0 , y o u ' d m a d e a n a w f u l l o t

19 of gains for your men. In 1950, in fact, that at a GM strike,

20 you won the union shop, pension, disability. Did any of these

21 great gains that the UAW won at General Motors grow out of

22 Flint in particular? Did you have a role in developing these?

2 3 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h . I t h i n k w e h a d a r o l e i n

24 everything that's ever come out of any negotiations.

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : U p t o t h i s p o i n t , w h e n y o u b e c o m e
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1 R e g i o n a l D i r e c t o r , o r A s s i s t a n t R e g i o n a l D i r e c t o r , c a n y o u

2 r e c a l l s p e c i fi c g a i n s t h a t y o u w e n t a f t e r a n d g o t a t t h e

3 i n t e r n a t i o n a l l e v e l ?

4 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , t h e p e n s i o n c a m e a b o u t , I t h i n k i t

5 w a s i n 1 9 5 0 . I c a n ' t , d a t e - w i s e , s p e c i f y w h i c h e v e r o n e o f

6 t h e m c a m e i n t o b e i n g a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : W e l l , b y t h i s t i m e , y o u h a d v a c a t i o n

8 p a y , o f c o u r s e .

9 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d C O L A .

1 1 M R . E L L I S : A n d s o w h a t e v e r t h e y w e r e , w e r e a d d - o n s ,

1 2 s o w h e n w e p r o p o s e d , w e s a i d t o o u r s e l v e s , C h r i s t , i f w e ' d

1 3 t h o u g h t w e w e r e g o i n g t o g e t i t , w e w o u l d h a v e p r o p o s e d s o m e

1 4 m o r e . S o t h o s e a r e a d d - o n s t h i n g s t h a t c a m e a l o n g . T h e

1 5 p e n s i o n i n ' 5 0 w a s t h e fi r s t o n e , y o u k n o w , t h e fi r s t p e n s i o n

1 6 t h a t w e h a d . S o f r o m t h e fi r s t p e n s i o n u n t i l n o w , y o u k n o w ,

1 7 t h e y ' r e a l l a d d - o n s .

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : S o m e o f t h e m s e e m f a i r l y r e a s o n a b l e :

1 9 A p e n s i o n ; m a y b e e v e n h o s p i t a l i z a t i o n . B u t w h e n t h i n g s l i k e

2 0 s u b p a y w e r e p r o p o s e d , d i d n ' t G M g o r i g h t t h r o u g h t h e r o o f ?

2 1 j M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h . Y o u k n o w , G M w e n t t h r o u g h t h e

2 2 r o o f o n a n y t h i n g . W a y b a c k . T h e m o s t a s i n i n e , g o o fi e s t

2 3 t h i n g . I d o n ' t c a r e w h a t i t w a s . I f i t m a d e s e n s e , t h e y ' d g o

2 4 t h r o u g h t h e i r g o u r d o n i t .

2 5 G e n e r a l M o t o r s n e v e r g a v e n o t h i n g t o t h i s u n i o n .
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1 N o t h i n g . A n d t h e y h a v e n ' t g i v e n n o t h i n g u n t i l t o d a y. I n

2 f a c t , t h e y ' r e t a k i n g b a c k . A n d t h a t ' s n o r m a l . Yo u h a v e t o

3 a c c e p t i t . T h a t ' s n o r m a l . T h e y ' r e a b u s i n e s s . A n d t h e y ' r e

4 v ic ious bus iness peop le way back .

5 W e l l , y o u ' v e g o t y o u n g e r p e o p l e c o m i n g a l o n g , a n d

6 d i f f e r e n t t h e o r i e s . B u t t h e t h e o r y i s n ' t t h a t w e ' r e a l l

7 b r o t h e r s . A n d t h a t ' s t h e i m a g e t h a t ' s b e i n g p o r t r a y e d n o w.

8 A n d i t i s n ' t t r u e . I s a y t h i s v e r y h o n e s t l y , a n d I s a y i t

9 s i n c e r e l y. A n d I s a y i t w i t h o u t a n y b i t t e r n e s s .

1 0 B u t G M p a r t i c u l a r l y - - b e c a u s e I h a v e n o F o r d ,

11 C h r y s l e r , n o t h i n g b u t G M a n d p a r t s i n t h i s r e g i o n . I t h i n k

1 2 i t ' s t r u e i n F o r d , t o o . I t h i n k i t ' s b e e n t r u e i n C h r y s l e r .

13 Bu t I don ' t t h i nk i t ' s been as t rue as i t ' s been i n GM,

14 because GM has been the largest and the most arrogant group of

1 5 p e o p l e i n t h e w o r l d . T h e y ' r e t h e e l i t e . A n d t h e y h a v e n e v e r

1 6 g i v e n t h i s u n i o n n o t h i n g . A n d e v e r y t h i n g t h a t w e ' v e g o t

17 there, even some of the minor th ings, somebody in th is

18 o rgan iza t i on - - no t on l y l eade rsh ip - - bu t somebody i n t he

1 9 m e m b e r s h i p s u f f e r e d a n d p a i d f o r i t .

2 0 A n d I s u p p o s e i t w o u l d b e t h a t w a y . B u t I g u e s s I

21 come from the old school . But I cannot th ink of one goddamned

22 th ing , even a minor th ing , tha t GM gave th is un ion w i thout

23 cos t ing someth ing . Not on ly money, bu t cos t ing somebody

2 4 s o m e t h i n g .

2 5 S h i f t p r e f e r e n c e . J e s u s C h r i s t , t h e y h a d n o l o g i c a l
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answer for a guy on a same job, who had been doing the job 15

years more than the guy on the second shift, and then wanting
2 to work second shift, and put the other guy on days.

You know, no, you can't do it. You know, you've to

break in. Well, why in the hell do you have to break a guy 15

6 years on the same job? It's something good for the company.

7 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y j u s t w o u l d n ' t l e t h i m c h a n g e

8 s h i f t s ?

9 M R . E L L I S : N o . W h y ? J e s u s C h r i s t , t h e y f o u g h t

10 that as hard as they fought the pension plans. You know, some

11 things that were good for the company, you had to cram down

12 their necks. And then later, Jesus Chr ist , that 's working

13 beautiful ly, you know. So I guess that's the way it 's been.

1 4 B u t t h e y ' r e b e i n g p o r t r a y e d n o w , t o m e , i t ' s g o t t h e

15 membership confused. You can't pick up anything that it isn't

16 a joint operation. So a guy goes to work in a plant, I don't

17 know, unless he comes from a labor background, or on his own

18 as an individual, gets so involved that he understands where

19 you're coming from, and what it took to get there, I can

20 understand why they're a l i t t le confused.

2 1 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y t h i n k G M g a v e i t t o t h e m ?

2 2 M R . E L L I S : Ye a h . E v e r y t h i n g t h a t ' s i n t h e r e , a g u y

23 comes along and now, then, they see that everything's

24 administered jointly, even our 50th here, Tuesday night, you

25 know. Al Warren shared the platform with the president of our
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1 u n i o n . Yo u k n o w , A l W a r r e n i s a g r e a t g u y . H e d o n ' t k n o w

2 w h a t t h e h e l l h e ' s d o i n g o n t h e j o b h e ' s g o t , a n d h e p u b l i c l y

3 s a i d s o i n t h e p a p e r i n h i s fi r s t g o d d a m n e d n e g o t i a t i o n s . B u t

4 t h r o u g h w h a t e v e r w a y y o u g e t s o m e w h e r e i n t h e c o r p o r a t i o n , h e

5 w o u n d u p d o i n g t h e j o b .

6 A n d w h e n h i s a g o o d f r i e n d w h o s a t u n d e r n e a t h h i m

7 g o t s i c k , h e ' s l o s t , a n d h e l l , h e ' s s a i d i n T h e F r e e P r e s s a n d

8 T h e N e w s , I ' m n o t f a m i l i a r w i t h t h i s k i n d o f a t h i n g .

9 j A n d n o w t h e n , a l l o f o u r a f f a i r s , y o u w i n d t h e

1 0 g o d d a m n e d t h i n g u p a n d a l l o f a s u d d e n , y o u k n o w, s o l i d a r i t y ,

11 a n d g o t h o l d o f - - a n d A l W a r r e n , a n d s a y s , i t ' s g o i n g t o b e a

1 2 d i f f e r e n t u n i o n d o w n t h e r o a d , t h a n i t u s e d t o b e .

1 3 S o t h e r a n k a n d fi l e p e o p l e - - a n d t h a t ' s b e e n o n e

1 4 o f o u r p r o b l e m s , a n y w a y , i s c o m m u n i c a t i n g . A n d i t ' s h a r d t o

1 5 c o m m u n i c a t e t h r o u g h l i t e r a t u r e a n d t h r o u g h t h e m a i l . T h e o n l y

1 6 w a y y o u c a n d o i t i s f r o m t h e g r o u n d u p , a n d t h a t ' s f r o m t h e

1 7 s t a r t . T h e a l t e r n a t e c o m m i t t e e m a n , t h e d i s t r i c t c o m m i t t e e m a n

1 8 a n d t h e s h o p c o m m i t t e e m a n , t h a t ' s y o u r c o m m u n i c a t i o n s y s t e m i n

1 9 t h e p l a n t .

2 0 A n d a l l t h a t o c c u r r e d i n t h e t i m e t h a t I w a s

2 1 i n v o l v e d . E a c h o n e o f t h o s e g u y s , a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r t i m e ,

2 2 k n e w w h a t t h e i s s u e s w e r e . T h e y k n e w w h a t w e w a n t e d . A n d

2 3 h e l l , t h e m e m b e r s h i p w a s i n v o l v e d , b e c a u s e d i s t r i c t

2 4 c o m m i t t e e m e n h a d 2 5 0 p e o p l e . A n d h e l l , h e k n e w t h e m a l l , o r

2 5 h e s h o u l d h a v e . I d o n ' t t h i n k t h a t ' s t r u e t o d a y .
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1 M R . R U G G L E S : I h a d o n e e x a m p l e o f t h a t . A n d I w a s

2 going to ask you about such th ings as poor at tendance. Even

3 i n t h e l a t e ' 6 0 s - -

4 M R . E L L I S : R i g h t .

5 M R . R U G G L E S : - - t h e r e w a s a r a t i fi c a t i o n v o t e w h e r e

6 l e s s t h a n 1 0 p e r c e n t - - t h i s w a s a B u i c k F l i n t l o c a l - -

7 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

8 M R . R U G G L E S : L e s s t h a n 1 0 p e r c e n t v o t e d o n

9 r a t i fi c a t i o n o f a c o n t r a c t . W h a t d o y o u t h i n k t h e u n d e r l y i n g

1 0 c a u s e o f t h i s a t t i t u d e i s ?

1 1 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w h a t d a t e w a s t h a t ?

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : T h a t w o u l d b e i n ' 6 8 .

1 3 M R . E L L I S : ' 6 8 , t h a t ' s c o m p a r a t i v e l y - -

1 4 M R . R U G G L E S : T o g e t t o b e s p e c i fi c .

1 5 M R . E L L I S : T o g o f r o m ' 4 8 t o ' 6 8 , t h a t ' s 2 0 y e a r s

1 6 d i f f e r e n c e .

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : R i g h t . B u t e v e n t h e n , i t ' s w a y b a c k

1 8 t h e r e t h a t t h e p r o b l e m e x i s t e d .

1 9 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . W e l l , s a m e t h i n g , e v e n t h o u g h w a y

20 back i n my t ime , we rea l l y had a sma l l pa r t i c i pa t i on o f t he

21 membersh ip i n vo t i ng on con t rac ts . Bu t t he fu r the r back you

22 go, you know, the people who worked in the plants at that t ime

23 knew what the issues were. They knew what the sett lement was.

2 4 A n d i f t h e l e a d e r s h i p i n t h e r e , o n c e i t w a s o v e r, s a i d h e y, i t

25 a in ' t enough, but that 's the best we can do, and we ought to
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1 accept it, you know, because they were familiar with the

2 people. And so that was good enough for the people.

3 T h e o n l y t i m e y o u h a d a b i g u p r i s i n g w a s w h e n

4 somebody didn't l ike anything. So they said, well, the union

5 is like anything else, I guess, the regular membership that

6 holds its own position on it says, Hey, that's your job, Mr.

7 Committeeman. You know, you attend the membership meetings.

8 That's what I elect you to do.

9 B u t t h o s e p e o p l e b a c k t h e n k e p t t h e m s o i n f o r m e d

10 that they knew. And if something came up they didn't like,

11 they'd come to the membership meeting. And hell, anytime

12 you'd go to a membership meeting and you had 150, 200 people

13 out there, you knew goddamned well somebody didn't like

14 something. They wouldn't have come over there because they

15 l iked something. And so I think that real ly generated

16 complacency, I guess is what you would call it.

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : I s t h e r e a w e a k n e s s t h e n , a t t h e l o c a l

18 level, in communicating or educating?

1 9 J M R . E L L I S : N o , I d o n ' t t h i n k b a c k e v e n a s l a t e a s

20 the '60s, I think even then, that would have indicated that

21 the local leadership, even at district, were communicating.

22 And those people, the membership, knew what they were going to

23 vote. And instead of going over, real ly, and support ing the
24 thing, there was not enough opposition anywhere to know they

25 were going to get voted down, that they just said, Hey, that's
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1 fine . Now, you guys have been do ing t h i s r i gh t a l ong , j u s t go

2 o n o v e r a n d v o t e f o r m e . R e a l l y, t h a t w a s t h e i r s e n s e o f i t ,

3 y o u k n o w.

4 | I t h i n k m a y b e f r o m ' 6 8 u n t i l t h e p r e s e n t t i m e - - i t

5 d i d n ' t j u s t h a p p e n - - I t h i n k s l o w l y, I d o n ' t t h i n k t h a t ' s

6 t r u e . I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e m e m b e r s h i p i s f a m i l i a r , a s f a m i l i a r

7 w i t h w h a t t h i s u n i o n i s d o i n g , a s t h e y u s e d t o b e . I d o n ' t

8 t h i n k t h e y a r e .

9 A n d y o u ' r e n o t g o i n g d o t h a t b y p u t t i n g t h i s i n a

10 paper to them, you know, send ing i t t o the i r homes . They jus t

11 a r e n ' t g o i n g t o - - s o I d o n ' t t h i n k t h e r e ' s a c l o s e e n o u g h

12 communicat ion, c lose enough of work ing and dedicat ion.

1 3 j M R . R U G G L E S : A r e t h e w o r k e r s g e t t i n g t o o f a t a n d

1 4 s a s s y t o d a y ?

1 5 M R . E L L I S : I t h i n k t h i s c o u l d b e t r u e . I t h i n k

16 tha t ' s why ou r po l i t i ca l and ou r show ing fo r t he l as t 20 yea rs

17 has come about.

1 8 W e c o m e f r o m a p l a c e o f b e i n g a b l e t o s a y , y o u k n o w ,

19 you 've got a two-par ty system. My age, you 'd come f rom

20 Depression days, and nobody had nothing. You weren' t mad at

21 anybody, bu t i t was j us t common . Wha t t he he l l , i t wasn ' t

22 t ough . The re ' s no use you c r y i ng abou t i t , because he l l ,

23 everybody down the road is the same base.

2 4 i A n d s o t h a t g o e s b a c k i n t o t h e D e m o c r a t i c a n d t h e

25 Repub l i can Par t y. See , the Democra t i c th ing , the Democra ts
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1 was always forever economic and a social thing. And coming

2 from where nobody had anything. You know, the old WPA. Take

3 you off in welfare, and give you a shovel and didn't have

4 nothing to dig. Same thing as in the service, you know. A

5 guy would hand you a shovel, and tell you to dig a hole. And

6 you'd get i t al l done, and he's say, now this afternoon, fil l

7 i t up. But he paid you. They'd pay you for doing i t . You

8 didn't have to stand in line for a handout.

9 A n d e v e n i f y o u s t o o d o n t h e s h o v e l , t h e r e w a s n ' t

10 really a hell of a lot he had to do. But at least it gave him

11 a sense of earning something, rather than being donated a bowl

12 of soup or something.

1 3 A n d I t h i n k t h r o u g h t h e y e a r s , a n d t h r o u g h a l l o f

14 the good times that we've had, we still say to our membership,

15 you know, you are the working poor. They aren't the working

16 poor working in the goddamned plants. And you are the blue

17 col lar, you know. And you can' t l ive.

1 8 W e l l , t h e g u y i n t h e p l a n t v e r y h o n e s t l y s a i d t o

19 himself, well, whoever them poor bastards are, I feel sorry

20 for them. But shi t , he a in ' t ta lk ing to me. And so, I don' t
2 1 t h i n k h e ' s r i g h t .

2 2 A n d s o t h e y s t a r t e d , t h e n , t h e i n d e p e n d e n t t h i n g ,

23 the individual independent thing, and saying the old

24 express ion, I don ' t vote any s t ra ight t icket . I vote for the
.2 2 man. And that's a good theory. It 's just that, you don't
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1 e l e c t a h e l l o f a l o t o f p e o p l e v o t i n g f o r t h e m a n .

2 A n d s o , a s w e h a v e b e c o m e a l l o f t h e t h i n g s w e ' v e

3 g o t , t h e p e o p l e w e ' r e t a l k i n g t o , v e r y h o n e s t l y , y o u k n o w ,

4 w h a t t h e h e l l , y o u m a k e $ 4 0 , 0 0 0 a y e a r , s h i t , I a i n ' t t h e

5 w o r k i n g p o o r . T h e y a i n ' t t a l k i n g t o m e . S o I ' l l d o w h a t I

6 w a n t t o d o .

7 A n d t h e n , o f c o u r s e , t i m e s c h a n g e , a n d t h e

8 p o l i t i c i a n s c h a n g e . A n d i t s e e m s t h a t , w h i l e t h e D e m o c r a t i c

9 P a r t y p l a t f o r m c a n ' t b e t h e s a m e a s i t w a s 5 0 y e a r s a g o , b u t

1 0 n o w i t g e t s k i n d o f l i k e t h e u n i o n .

1 1 Y o u c a n ' t t e l l t h e u n i o n f r o m a m a n a g e m e n t g u y . Y o u

1 2 c a n ' t t e l l a D e m o c r a t f r o m a R e p u b l i c a n h a l f o f t h e t i m e . Yo u

1 3 e l e c t a D e m o c r a t i n o n e s p o t , a n d C h r i s t , t h e g u y w h o w a s

1 4 t h e r e w h o w a s a R e p u b l i c a n w a s a b e t t e r g u y t h a n h e e l e c t e d .

1 5 S o I g u e s s t h a t ' s j u s t t h e n a t u r e o f g o i n g t h r o u g h c e r t a i n

1 6 p e r i o d s o f t i m e .

1 7 M R . R U G G L E S : I t p o s e s s o m e g r e a t p r o b l e m s f o r t h e

1 8 u n i o n , d o e s n ' t i t ?

1 9 M R . E L L I S : I t c e r t a i n l y d o e s . A n d f o r t h e p e o p l e .

2 0 And those peop le who have e i t he r sa t home and no t done

2 1 a n y t h i n g , o r w o r k i n g p e o p l e w h o h a v e e x e r c i s e d t h e i r r i g h t ,

2 2 a n d s a y s , t h e u n i o n i s n o t t a l k i n g t o m e , a n d s o I v o t e , y o u

2 3 k n o w , f o r N i x o n , o r I v o t e f o r t h e p r e s e n t p r e s i d e n t , b e c a u s e

2 4 I I t h i n k h e - - j u s t h e - - i s a b e t t e r m a n t h a n t h e o t h e r .

2 5 A n d i t ' s g o i n g t o c r e a t e s o m e p r o b l e m s d o w n t h e
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1 road, because in my mind, there's a definite place as far as

2 the difference between the Democratic and the Republican

3 Party. And I suppose that's because of my age, because I had

4 nothing, and then as Roosevelt got elected, and he made all

5 these social things, al l the di fferent kinds of programs, they

6 paid people. You know, you got paid for it.

7 A n d t h e R e p u b l i c a n t h e o r y i s y o u p u l l y o u r s e l f u p b y

8 the boo ts t rap . Tha t ' s fine , i f t he re ' s oppor tun i t i es and

9 avai labi l i ty, then i ts easy for a guy to pul l himself up by

10 bootstrap if his old man's got 15, 20 million bucks.

1 1 A n d t h e G o v e r n m e n t i s r u n l i k e a n y t h i n g e l s e .

12 Corporations, you know, every time we meet with them in

13 contracts and in pol i t ical things, what the hel l , where are

14 they at? Actual ly, on the other side, and they're doing i t

15 for their own reasons. So I guess we're kind of drift ing.

16 And when we get down the road 15 or 18 years, it's already

17 happening.

1 8 B u t w i t h a l l t h e s e g o v e r n m e n t a l a p p o i n t m e n t s - - a n d

19 some are for life, for Christ's sake -- and the National Labor

20 Relations Board has slowly been changing as we've been losing

21 the president and the appointed positions.

2 2 I A n d w h e r e C h r y s l e r p r e s e n t l y i s r e - w r i t i n g s o m e o f

23 the old goddamned labor laws. They're rewriting some of the

24 decisions the National Labor Relations Board has lived with

25 for years and years. They're rewri t ing them. They ain' t no
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1 good anymore.

2 M R . R U G G L E S : I s t h e N L R B b e c o m i n g a c t u a l l y a n t i -

3 l a b o r ?

4 M R . E L L I S : O h , t h e y a r e n ' t b e c o m i n g . T h e y h a v e .

5 They are. There isn't any question about it, and no bones

6 a b o u t i t .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : I n w h a t s p e c i fi c w a y s ?

8 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w h a t l i t t l e r i g h t s w e ' v e h a d u n d e r

9 the law, the National Labor Relations Act, you know. Jesus

10 Christ, in some of our existing contracts, language-wise, in

11 the closing of plants, and di fferent k inds of th ings, they

12 don ' t apply anymore. I t d idn ' t mean that . And i t 's get t ing

13 to where anything that would go to them for a decision, you're

14 not going to win it, before you go. There's no question about

1 5 i t .

1 6 T h e S u p r e m e C o u r t , t h e s a m e t h i n g . I g u e s s t h e y ' v e

17 got two now that are real, real old, and they're pumping life

18 into them, hoping they can l ive unti l after the next election,

19 you know. If they don't, well, then, Reagan is going to

20 appoint these two to the Supreme Court, and with different

21 ph i l osoph ies .

2 2 S o m e a r e f o r s o c i a l - - i n o t h e r w o r d s , w h e n I s a y

23 social, at least work opportunit ies are available, or some

24 kind of something, work, for those people who really want to

25 work. I'm not talking about somebody who doesn't want to
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1 work . A l t hough we ' ve go t peop le whose g rand fa the rs , f o r

2 C h r i s t ' s s a k e , d i d n ' t w o r k . T h e y j u s t h a p p e n e d t o g e t c a u g h t

3 in the cha in o f someth ing l i ke tha t , and they don ' t know any

4 b e t t e r .

5 ' A n d s o m e o f t h e l a w s , w o m e n t h a t a r e w o r k i n g A D C ,

6 a n d t h o s e k i n d s o f t h i n g s . I ' v e h e l p e d s e v e r a l o f t h o s e ,

7 w h e r e v e r I c o u l d . I ' v e h e l p e d t h e m fi n d j o b s . B e c a u s e , I

8 don' t know how many, but there have got to be a hel l of a lot

9 o f t hem tha t ' s d raw ing and don ' t wan t t o . They don ' t wan t t o

1 0 j u s t s i t a n d d r a w. B u t i f t h e y d i d n ' t h a v e s o m e o f t h e s e

11 o p p o r t u n i t i e s , t h e n C h r i s t , I d o n ' t k n o w, y o u ' v e g o t t o f e e d

1 2 t h e m .

1 3 M R . R U G G L E S : N o t t o g e t o f f t h a t s u b j e c t , b u t l e t

14 me take you back for just a second. Let me take you back to

15 nego t i a t i ng . You were ta l k ing abou t Genera l Mo to rs be ing so

16 tough. D id you s i t across the tab le f rom some rea l tough ones

17 i n nego t i a t i ons? Who we re t hey, do you reca l l ?

1 8 M R . E L L I S : I t h i n k a l l .

1 9 ; M R . R U G G L E S : W h o w a s t h e t o u g h e s t ?

2 0 M R . E L L I S : Y o u ' d h a v e t o p r e t t y n e a r g o b y

2 1 d i v i s i o n s . I t h i n k t h e C h e v r o l e t D i v i s i o n i s t h e m o s t

22 arrogant and the toughest of any of them.

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : D u r i n g p a r t i c u l a r p e r i o d s , o r j u s t

2 4 h i s t o r i c a l l y, a c r o s s t h e b o a r d ?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : N o w . S t i l l a r e . F r o m t h e l o w e r l e v e l
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1 u p . I t h i n k i t ' s b r e d i n t o t h e m . I r e a l l y d o . T h e o n l y

2 d i f fe rence that I see is that even as mean and tough as, wel l ,

3 guys l i ke t h i s Sea ton (ph . sp . ) , and No rm E l l i s ( ph . sp . ) and

4 some of the old old-t imers, once you came to an agreement with

5 him, you know, you could go to bed with him. Once you got an

6 a g r e e m e n t .

7 I To d a y , y o u c a n h a v e a n a g r e e m e n t , a n d s o m e b o d y w i l l

8 change that guy from management, and he has to come back right

9 a f t e r y o u ' v e g o t i t i n w r i t i n g , a n d t e l l y o u , I c a n ' t l i v e

1 0 w i t h i t .

1 1 T h e y d o n ' t h a v e t h e a u t h o r i t y , i n t h a t s e n s e , a s

12 they 've g rown up , tha t the o ld ones d id . The o ld ones , once

13 you made an agreement wi th them, even at the nat ional level ,

1 4 t h a t w a s i t .

1 5 I M R . R U G G L E S : T h e r e ' s a d i f f e r e n t c o d e o f e t h i c s ?

1 6 M R . E L L I S : T h e y h a d c o m p l e t e a u t h o r i t y . T h a t ' s

1 7 d i s a p p e a r i n g f r o m t h e c o r p o r a t i o n s .

1 8 M R . R U G G L E S : W h e n y o u w e n t i n t o n e g o t i a t e , d i d y o u

1 9 g o i n w i t h v e r y s p e c i fi c p l a n s o r g o a l s , o r w e r e y o u fl e x i b l e ?

20 Were you w i l l i ng to bend?

2 1 ' M R . E L L I S : W e l l , y o u ' r e fl e x i b l e . I d o n ' t c a r e

22 wha t you had . Bu t t he re was spec i fic emphas i s on d i f f e ren t

2 3 t h i n g s . We l l , y o u k n o w, l i k e t h e p e n s i o n s , o r w h a te v e r w e ' v e

2 4 g o t w o u l d b e , a t t h e n a t i o n a l l e v e l , w e r e s p e c i fi c s .

2 5 Y o u a l w a y s h a d e n o u g h t o b e fl e x i b l e , e v e n w a y t h e
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1 h e l l b a c k , y o u k n o w , w i t h t h e e x c e p t i o n o f w h e n y o u g o t i n t o

2 w o r k r u l e s , w a y , w a y b a c k . A n d t h e r e w a s n o fl e x i b i l i t y

3 t h e r e . I f s o m e g u y g o t fi r e d , n o b o d y w o r k e d . W h a t t h e h e l l ,

4 t h a t ' s o n l y i f h e g o t fi r e d . S o t h e y h a d fl e x i b i l i t y .

5 I M R . R U G G L E S : I w a n t t o t a l k t o y o u a b o u t v i o l e n c e

6 i n t h e s t r i k e s , a n d j u r i s d i c t i o n a l q u e s t i o n s . O v e r t h e y e a r s ,

7 t h e r e h a v e b e e n a l o t o f j u r i s d i c t i o n a l q u e s t i o n s b e t w e e n

8 d i f f e r e n t u n i o n s , a n d s o m e t i m e s w i t h i n t h e u n i o n . A n d q u i t e

9 o f t e n , t h a t l e d t o v i o l e n c e .

1 0 I s t h e r e a w a y t o a v o i d t h i s t y p e o f t h i n g i n t h e

1 1 f u t u r e ? S h o u l d n ' t t h e j u r i s d i c t i o n o f a p a r t i c u l a r u n i o n b e

1 2 k n o w n a h e a d o f t i m e , s o t h a t s u c h t h i n g s a s v i o l e n t o u t b r e a k s

1 3 a r o u n d a p l a n t c o u l d b e a v o i d e d ?

1 4 T h e r e w a s o n e , f o r i n s t a n c e , y o u m i g h t r e c a l l , a n d

1 5 i t m u s t h a v e b e e n a r a t h e r b l o o d y b a t t l e , d o w n i n G r a n d B l a n c ,

1 6 b e t w e e n p i p e fi t t e r s a n d r i g g e r s . I ' m n o t s u r e t h a t t h e U A W

1 7 w a s a c t u a l l y i n v o l v e d i n i t .

1 8 M R . E L L I S : W e w e r e n ' t . N o , w e w e r e n o t i n v o l v e d i n

1 9 t h a t . T h a t ' s a j u r i s d i c t i o n a l fi g h t b e t w e e n t h e c r a f t u n i o n s

2 0 t h e m s e l v e s .

2 1 M R . R U G G L E S : B u t , t h e y o c c u r r e d i n t h e U A W a l s o , i n

2 2 d i f f e r e n t l o c a l s , o r e v e n s o m e r e g i o n s d i s p u t e d w h o h a d - -

2 3 I M R . E L L I S : I f i t w a s . T h a t w o u l d h a v e b e e n o u t s i d e

2 4 c o n t r a c t i n g w o r k i n t h e F i s h e r p l a n t , f o r e x a m p l e . Yo u h a d a

2 5 j u r i s d i c t i o n a l a r g u m e n t o n w h o w o u l d d o c e r t a i n w o r k . A n d
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1 just because i t 's in a UAW plant , you know, i t would cause us

2 some prob lems.

3 T h e o n l y t h i n g I c a n t h i n k o f i n t h a t l i g h t t h a t

4 w e ' v e h a d w i t h i n o u r o r g a n i z a t i o n i s t h e fi g h t w i t h t h e

5 Ski l led Trades Society, which we - -

6 M R . R U G G L E S : S k i l l e d T r a d e s a r e m e m b e r s o f t h e U A W ,

7 a r e n ' t t h e y ?

8 M R . E L L I S : W e r e , t h e y w e r e m e m b e r s o f o u r s , b u t

9 t h e y w e r e b e i n g m i s l e d i n t o t r y i n g t o g e t i n t o a c r a f t u n i o n .

10 In o the r words , o f t he i r own . To ge t ou t o f ou r un ion , and go

11 i n t o a n o r g a n i z a t i o n a l l t h e i r o w n .

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d t h a t w o u l d b e t h e I S S T ?

1 3 j M R . E L L I S : T h a t w a s t h e I S S T . A n d t h e l e a d e r s h i p ,

14 very s imp ly, on tha t , was ind iv idua ls who were seek ing to take

15 ou r members ou t . And na tu ra l l y, i f t hey had been success fu l ,

16 whoever the i r names were - - I can ' t reca l l one guy tha t I

17 shou ld , bu t h i s name s l i ps ou t o f my m ind he was ou t o f

1 8 C h e v y.

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : I t w a s n ' t f J o e D e n e b e c k ( p h . / s p . ) , ' s

2 0 i t ?

2 1 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . D e n e b e c k ^ J o e T A n d r e a l l y ,

2 2 l a t e r, h e w a s t i g h t u p w i t h t h e R e p u b l i c a n P a r t y. A n d h e

23 created us a hel l of a problem wi th in each of our GM plants,

2 4 t o t h e e x t e n t t h a t t h e y w e r e g o i n g t o p i c k e t t h e p l a n t s . W i t h

25 no j u r i sd i c t i ona l a rgumen ts . They were a l l UAW peop le .
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1 A n d i n t h e h o p e s t h a t , n a t u r a l l y , o u r p e o p l e s e e a

2: picket line, what the hell, they're going to go home. They

2 don' t work. And i t was outs ide of the i r const i tu t ional

4 rights. And we were forced, while we had kind of put up with

5 them in that sense, we had to fight them polit ically within

5 the local un ions, wi th in the s t ructure.

7 A n d w e fi n a l l y d i d w h a t w e p r o b a b l y s h o u l d h a v e d o n e

8 when i t first started. We said, you're not going to do that.

9 And you hadn't ought to be out in front of our UAW plants with

10 a picket l ine. I don' t give a shi t i f you are dues-paying

11 members. You shouldn't do that, because you don't have the

12 right to withhold. You don't have a right to make that kind

13 of a decision. And there's nothing the UAW is involved in to

14 keep those people from working, and so we're going to see that

15 they work, and you people ought not to be out here.

1 6 A n d s o w e h a d - - i t o n l y t o o k o n e d a y , a f t e r a l l t h e

17 putting up with it. We had one day that we moved them,

18 starting here from Chevy, we moved them from in the front of

19 the plant, and from here, they went down to the manufacturing

20 plant. And we moved them out from there.

21 MR. RUGGLES: When you say you moved them?

2 2 M R . E L L I S : We m o v e d t h e m , a n d m o v e d s o m e o f t h e i r

23 cars, you know, without batteries. And explained a few things

7.1 to people who were hard-headed, and had to have it explained

25 to them, you know. It's kind of, you take a kid, you slap
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1 him. You take a man, you hit him.

2 A n d i n o n e d a y , w e s t o p p e d i t . W e p u t a w h o l e

3 complete stop in the c i ty of Fl int . And i t final ly winded up

4 over at my local, in AC. And I had about 25 -- I don't know,

5 by that time, I had 300 or 400 State Police, and deputy

6 sheriffs, and we were very fortunate, in really working out a

7 solution to the problem before the shift started. We had

8 about 3 0 tradesmen parading around in front of the goddamned

9 gate where the people was.

1 0 A n d o f c o u r s e , t h e y w o u n d u p o v e r t h e r e , b e c a u s e o f

11 these two fracases we'd had here at Chevy. And we were really

12 fortunate, in one sense, as to convince the head of the law

13 enforcement that they ought to move those guys themselves,

14 before we did. Because we were going to move them. And of

15 course, they were saying, when you move them, and the law is

16 going to say they have a right, that's city property. And we

17 were able to convince them that it didn't make any difference

18 what they were going to do. They were either going to get

1 9 t h e m t h e h e l l o u t o f t h e r e , o r w e w e r e g o i n g t o .

2 0 A n d s o w e w o r k e d o u t w h a t w e t h o u g h t w a s a

21 compromise. We got them out of the gate. They took the

22 police and ringed these 3 0 guys, but them moved them from in

23 front of the gate where the people could go to work. And they

24 had them al l r inged with officers.

2 5 A n d C h r i s t , t h e y l o o k e d k i n d o f f u n n y , y o u k n o w .
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1 H e r e a r e t h e s e g u y s , a l i t t l e b i t t y b u n c h , l i k e c a t t l e . A n d

2 t h e y h a d a l l t h e o f fi c e r s . We l l , b y t h a t t i m e , w e h a d g u y s

3 f r o m a l l t h e l o c a l u n i o n s t h a t h a d b e e n i n v o l v e d , a l i t t l e b i t

4 i n t he morn ing , and then a l i t t l e b i t more down he re . And by

5 t h a t t i m e , i n t h e a f t e r n o o n , h e l l , w e h a d a l l t h e l e a d e r s h i p

6 f r o m d i f f e r e n t l o c a l s , y o u k n o w.

7 A n d o u r p e o p l e w e n t t o w o r k . B u t i n t h e m e a n t i m e ,

8 whi le they went to work, the 20 or 30 pol icemen, and the 20 or

9 3 0 p i c k e t e r s g o t r o u g h e d u p a l i t t l e b i t . A t l e a s t , i t d i d n ' t

1 0 g e t t h e m a l l i n v o l v e d . A n d a f e w w e n t t o j a i l . B u t t h e

11 peop le wen t to work .

1 2 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d y o u g o t o j a i l ?

1 3 M R . E L L I S : N o . N o , I w a s t h e d i r e c t o r , I g u e s s , a t

1 4 t h a t t i m e .

1 5 M R . R U G G L E S : ' 6 6 - -

1 6 M R . E L L I S : N o .

1 7 ' M R . R U G G L E S : - - i s t h e o n e s i t u a t i o n .

1 8 | M R . E L L I S : ' 6 6 ?

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : I t ' s t h e o n e t h i n g I ' m - - w e l l , t h i s

20 is when Denebeck was speaking.

2 1 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . W e l l , t h a t w a s i t s h e y d a y ,

2 2 b e c a u s e P a t t e r s o n - - w e l l , ' 6 6 , t h a t c o u l d b e i t . N o , ' 5 9 w a s

23 when we had a l l t ha t con fus i on . Bu t we rea l l y k i nd o f go t r i d

2 4 o f t h a t f e e l i n g o f a s e p a r a t e c r a f t u n i o n .

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : H o w c a n t h e s k i l l e d t r a d e s b e k e p t
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1 happy within the UAW? They don't seem to be.

2 M R . E L L I S : N e v e r h a v e . B e c a u s e , n a t u r a l l y , t h e y ' r e

3 a craft union. They come from where you have to go to school.

4 You have to be knowledgeable. You have to know a lot more

5 than you have to know as far as production people. And so

6 once they go through the apprentice route, and become a

7 journeyman skil led tradesman, it 's l ike there are no poor

8 people, you know.

9 T h e y f e e l t h a t t h e y ' r e a g r o u p o f t h e i r o w n , a n d

10 they want no identity with anyone else. And they've always

11 had this kind of a feeling. And it 's kind of hard to convince

12 them that, in one sense, there's room within our structure for

13 ind iv idua l c ra f ts . And they ' re a he l l o f a lo t s t ronger wi th

14 115,000 or 120,000 production people helping them get what

15 they want, to get i t . They never get i t .

1 6 A n d d u r i n g t h i s g o i n g , b e c a u s e i t h a s b e e n t h i s w a y,

17 they've always wound up a little better off, you know, than

18 the production people.

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d t h a t ' s a c o n t i n u i n g b a t t l e ?

2 0 M R . E L L I S : Y e s . A n d I t h i n k , i t v e r y h o n e s t l y w i l l

21 be unt i l e i ther they're al l sk i l led. Because what we're going

22 into now, you've got to be more skilled in everything. And so

23 i t wi l l be a problem.

2 4 M R . E L L I S : M a y b e i t w i l l b e c o m e a b i g p l u s f o r t h e

25 UAW?
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1 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h .

2 M R . R U G G L E S : R a t h e r t h a n a d i s s i d e n t g r o u p t h a t ' s

3 a l w a y s - -

4 M R . E L L I S : I n o n e s e n s e , a n d t h a t i s t h a t i f

5 t he re ' s r easonab le , ded i ca ted peop le i n t ha t g roup . You know,

6 because they ' re a very jea lous group o f peop le . Because way

7 b a c k , p r o d u c t i o n a n d s k i l l e d r e p r e s e n t e d o n e a n o t h e r. A n d

8 ve ry hones t l y, a p roduc t ion guy can rep resen t sk i l l ed peop le a

9 he l l o f a l o t be t te r than a sk i l l ed t radesman can , you know.

1 0 I t ' s j u s t a v e r y s i m p l e f a c t . B e c a u s e t h e y ' v e g o t s o m a n y

11 ( i n d i s c e r n i b l e - t a p e c h a n g e . )

1 2 M R . E L L I S : . . . h e a i n ' t a s k i l l e d t r a d e s m a n . Y o u

1 3 k n o w, h e a i n ' t a m i l l w r i g h t . H e ' s n o t a p i p e fi t t e r . H e ' s n o t

1 4 a t o o l a n d d i e m a k e r. H e ' s a n e l e c t r i c i a n . A n d s o h e ' s a

1 5 g o o d f e l l o w f o r a l l e l e c t r i c i a n s . B u t t h e n h e ' s i n t o a g r o u p

1 6 o f h i m s e l f . A n d t h e n t r y i n g t o r e p r e s e n t a l l t h e d i f f e r e n t

17 t r ades , he ' s go t a m inus .

1 8 | N o w , y o u t a k e a p r o d u c t i o n g u y , w h o k n o w s n o t h i n g

19 abou t the t rades , the c ra f t , bu t a t l eas t knows how the

20 organ iza t ion ought to work , he can represent the g r ievance

21 p rocedu re a he l l o f a l o t be t t e r t han t hey can . Because ,

2 2 C h r i s t , h i s t o r y w i l l s h o w t h a t t h e y ' v e g i v e n a w a y a l o t o f

2 3 t h e i r w o r k . E a c h c l a s s , l i n e s o f d e m a r c a t i o n .

2 4 ; E l e c t r i c i a n s s a y , w h a t t h e h e l l , i t w o r k s fi n e , t h a t

2 5 l i t t l e p i e c e o f i t , a n d I ' m n o t g o i n g t o d o a n y m o r e .
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1 Somebody's got to do it. There are a lot of fringey parts.

2 Wel l , a p ipefit ter winds up doing i t .

3 I k n o w i n t h e G r a n d B l a n c p l a n t , t h e s e r v i c e i n t h a t

4 plant, and Jesus Christ, they had the most versatile

5 membership out there as far as skilled people, because it was

6 predominantly skil led. They could do one another's work.

7 A n d t h e c o m p a n y, m a n a g e m e n t , w a s v e r y s m a r t . T h e y

8 didn't give a shit who did it, as long as the work got done.

9 So Christ, we'd meet once a month, the trades guys and I.

10 We'd meet once a month. And they'd line up. "Well, I did

11 th is last month as a p ipefit ter. I 'm not going to do i t

12 anymore."

1 3 I S o I ' d g o o v e r h e r e i n t h i s c l a s s i fi c a t i o n . I

14 really didn't give a shit, because they were capable of doing

15 i t . So one month, I 'd g ive away a l i t t le b i t . They'd say, as

16 long as i t 's working regular and everything. Next thing, give

17 away th is . Nex t th ing , there a in ' t any work le f t . S ta r t

18 laying off. You go, oh, Christ, we want this back now. Oh,

19 what a hell of a mess.

20 | We used to have a meet ing once a month when I

21 serv iced thei r p lant . Sk i l led guys. Go through the l ines of

22 demarcation, knock off so many jobs in this job, put it in one

23 of the other skil l groups. Management would say, fine. Here.

24 We'd shut -- those were the most versatile workers you'd ever

25 seen. Every goddamn one of them could do anything.
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1 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y j u s t d i d n ' t w a n t t o ?

2 M R . E L L I S - : Y e a h . T h e y d i d n ' t w a n t t o , a s l o n g a s

3 they were working seven days a week, and ten hours a day. But

4 i t c rea tes some prob lems because once they s ta r t l ay ing o f f i n

5 a c l a s s i fi c a t i o n , t h e n t h a t g u y ' s s a y i n g , h e y, I u s e d t o d o

6 t h a t g u y ' s w o r k o v e r t h e r e . Yo u k n o w, g i v e i t b a c k . B y

7 a g r e e m e n t , t h a t ' s p r e t t y t o u g h t o d o .

8 M R . R U G G L E S : I t w a s a n e v e r - e n d i n g b a t t l e ?

9 M R . E L L I S : A n e v e r - e n d i n g b a t t l e .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e U A W , f o r y e a r s , g o i n g w a y b a c k t o

11 t he ea r l y ' 30s and ' 40s , has been a de fende r o f c i v i l r i gh t s .

12 And ye t , a t t he l oca l l eve l , t he re have o f ten been i ns tances

1 3 o f r a c i s m . A n d I g u e s s F l i n t h a s p r o b a b l y h a d i t s s h a r e . I

14 wan ted to ask you abou t rac ia l p rob lems i n t he reg ion . I n

1 5 1 9 6 5 , f o r i n s t a n c e , y o u r r e g i o n a l o f fi c e w a s p i c k e t e d b y t h e

16 NAACP, because I guess they felt there should have been more

1 7 b l a c k r e p r e s e n t a t i o n o n t h e b o a r d , a t l e a s t o n t h e s t a f f o f

1 8 l c .

1 9 ; A n d i n 1 9 6 3 , t h e F o r d a n d R e d m o n d ( p h . s p . ) p l a n t s

20 in Owosso were apparent ly a l i t t le edgy about hav ing to h i re

2 1 n e g r o e s . T h o s e a r e a l l w h i t e c o m m u n i t i e s , a r e n ' t t h e y ?

2 2 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h , i n O w o s s o . A l w a y s h a s b e e n .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d m a n a g e m e n t w a s a l i t t l e e d g y o r

24 nervous about the fac t tha t they were go ing to have to a l low

2 5 neg roes t o app l y. Tha t was one o the r s i t ua t i on . And t hen , i n
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1 , '65 also, the grand dragon of the Ku Klux Klan, Robert

2 Shelton, bragged that 700 union men had been signed up with Ku

3 K l u x K l a n a p p l i c a t i o n s i n t h e F l i n t a r e a .

4 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

5 M R . R U G G L E S : H e w a s b r a g g i n g , a l t h o u g h I d o n ' t k n o w

6 t h a t t h a t a c t u a l l y h a p p e n e d . B u t c o u l d y o u t e l l u s a b o u t t h e

7 r a c i s m i n t h e F l i n t a r e a , i n t h e s e a r e a s o f r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s o f

8 b lacks, number one, and then the Ku Klux Klan act iv i ty, number

9 t w o ?

1 0 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I g u e s s t h a t g o e s b a c k f r o m t h e

11 h i s t o r y o f t h e u n i o n . N o t o n l y t h e u n i o n , b e c a u s e t h a t ' s a s

12 fa r back as i t goes as peop le .

1 3 T h e b u l k o f t h e m e m b e r s h i p , f r o m p r o b a b l y - - I ' l l g o

14 jus t f rom my t ime, f rom '26 , and i t cou ld be a few years la te r

15 than tha t - - and the bu lk o f the work fo rce in the p lan ts , GM

1 6 p l a n t s , w a s a l l w h i t e . Ve r y, v e r y f e w b l a c k s a t a l l , u n l e s s

1 7 t h e y w e r e - - w e l l , l a t e r i n l i f e , t h e y b e c a m e - - b u t t h e r e

1 8 u s e d t o b e j a n i t o r s . A n d w e h a d t o fi g h t l i k e h e l l t o g e t

19 them broadened out .

2 0 | A n d F l i n t w a s a t r a n s i e n t l a b o r p l a c e . Y o u k n o w , i t

21 was made up o f th ree or four t imes t rans ien t peop le , ra ther

22 than peop le who l i ved i n F l i n t , because o f t he work . And

23 predominantly, people from the South and the West came to

2 4 F l i n t b a c k i n t h o s e d a y s .

2 5 A n d s o i t w a s k i n d o f , y o u k n o w , a m e m b e r s h i p m a d e
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up p redominan t l y o f peop le f rom d i f fe ren t a reas . I t goes back

to the Civ i l War days. So there were very few b lacks that

t o o k t h e i n i t i a t i v e a t t h a t p o i n t t o g e t a c t i v e . A n d t h e f e w

that did had a goddamned rough time.

So i t was jus t a per iod o f t ime. Ear l Crumpton (ph.

sp.) was the first black who came to work on~-t l ie_sta-ff 'here in

Fl in t , in 1951. He was f rom Chevy. He's dead now. He and I

came to work in the same year, out of the convention.

I know the reason that I d idn' t put more on --

because I put -- well, Earl came on with me, because it was me

and Carter. And we put Reuben Burk (ph. sp.), who is the

ass is tant now. We put Mack, who is our educat iona l d i rec tor

n o w . \

But we d idn ' t have b lacks ho ld ing var ious loca l

un ion h igh pos i t ions , l i ke shop commi t tee jobs , o r cha i rmen o f

t he shop , o r p res iden ts o f t he l oca l . And tha t ' s whe re ou r

work force comes from.

I had the same problem with women. Women would say,

why don't you have more women on the staff? I 'd say, you've

got to go out and get yourself elected somewhere, because when

I put somebody on the staff, I can't put a black or a woman on

t h e s t a f f . Yo u c a n ' t t e a c h t h e m t h i s j o b . Yo u ' v e g o t t o h a v e

some background, some experience.

And t he l oca l s j u s t d i dn ' t supp l y t ha t . You know,

so I 'd say to women, I can' t put you on the staff just because
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assis tant now. And Cyr i l McGu

c a l l , f r o m t h e p r e s i d e n t

you ' re a woman. And to the b lacks , I ' d say, I can ' t pu t a

b lack on the s ta f f jus t because he 's b lack .

Wel l , Reuben Burk, a very credible man. I t was easy

to put him on the sta^-frr~-.And^trne reflection Blows._ 22:' ;:2v:

, who's Mack, we

un iony d id
commendable je*r>. He'd been on the shop committee. He had the

background to do the job, which he was put on.

And so they d idn ' t supp ly i t t h rough the loca ls .

And unless a guy, a black, really had enough desire and enough

be l ie f in the un ion to figh t l i ke he l l and ge t somewhere and

s t a y t h e r e , p o l i t i c a l l y - - a n d t o g e t t h e r e , p a r t i c u l a r l y i n

Chevy and a lot of the plants had a di fferent e lement of

membership. And you know, being a pol i t ic ian, some wi l l make

no bones about i t . You know, make a picture. Want to make a

p i c tu re . O r, i f t hey had read a s la te o f a g roup , and the re

was a black guy, you know, they'd say, they'd put^_in—his

p ic tu re and go ing to ca l l you b lack .

So they used this J^hingT AfitKSam Duncan jt-ph. sp.),

who was the/presidential Local 598, I^d6iU-fe—krtow how many

years. Butx j |course, I ' d—knovm Sam for years, ever s ince he

was a young guy. He was active, but he was in this union.

And once he appl ied h imsel f , you know, i t d idn ' t matter how

many kicks you kicked him. He always came back. And he kept

d o i n g b e t t e r. A n d h e g o t e l e c t e d p r e s i d e n t o f t h a t l o c a l , a n d
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1 got elected by people who didn't have no black background.

2 Oppos i te .

3 | M R . R U G G L E S : S a m w a s b l a c k ?

4 M R . E L L I S : O h , y e s . A n d I d o n ' t t h i n k - - w e l l , S a m

5 v/as never defeated as president. He died. He had the

6 ability, and the desire, and did not give up. And because

7 they're elected posit ions -- you've got to get elected, you

8 know. And you can be the best available around, but if you're

9 not elected somewhere, you're not going to do anything with

10 the un ion.

11 M R . R U G G L E S : I n 1 9 7 0 , H o w e l l w a s t h e h o m e o f t h e

12 Michigan grand dragon, Bob Miles. I don't know if that means

13 anything, except i t 's in your region. Did you see any

14 reflection of Klan activity, and that 700 union men that

15 Shelton claims to have signed up? Was there any real proof

16 that that occurred?

1 7 J M R . E L L I S : W e l l , i t w a s e v i d e n t . A n d t h e y d i d h a v e

18 membership. I wouldn't dispute the fact of the amount he had,

19 you know. I really didn't know. But I do know that there

20 were people from various local unions that, hell, they made no

21 bones about it, joining, you know, that they were members of

22 the Ku Klux Klan.

2 3 I B u t i t ' s k i n d o f l i k e t h e I S S T i n t h a t s e n s e . I t

24 didn't get so overwhelming that before, evidently, each
25 individual local union, however, in their own way, combatted



1 it enough to where they quit running around I want to wear a

2 banner, at least, you know. So it died.

3 j MR. RUGGLES: I t neve r amoun ted to t oo much?

4 ! M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

5 j M R . R U G G L E S : I k n o w P a t t e r s o n w a s a w a r e o f i t .

6 i M R . E L L I S : O h , y e a h .

7 I M R . R U G G L E S : H e t a l k e d t o R e u t h e r a b o u t i t , a n d

8 Mazey and those. And I was wondering how you might have

9 handled i t at the local level , or at the regional level?

1 0 , M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w e r e a l l y , a s I s a y , i t w a s

11 concentrated, it seems to me that the biggest one unit of

12 them, or the strength of it was out to 326, in Turnstead (ph.

13 sp.). Because I can't remember now who it was, but it seems

14 that, hell, he was getting public press releases in The

15 Journal, and of course, he thrived on that.

1 6 A n d I w o u l d t h i n k , t h e w a y i t w a s h a n d l e d w a s , a s i t

17 was drawn to the attention of the local union leadership,

18 that, you know, it had no place in our union, and they ought

19 to combat it on the basis of letting their membership know,

20 and what the hell there was doing, and what the intent was.

21 And I think the local union themselves, those guys and women,

22 really, once they became aware of everything to that extent, I

23 th ink they handled i t , so that i t d ied r ight out.

24 I MR. RUGGLES: D id you know Bro ther Trammel?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : W h o ?
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MR. RUGGLES: Brother Trammel. Does that ring a

be l l?

MR. ELLIS: Trammel?

MR. RUGGLES: Trammel. He's apparently the one that

had the conversation with Shelton, the grand dragon, when

Shelton bragged about signing up 700 people in Flint. But

that's 20 years ago.

MR. ELLIS: No, that name, evidently it wasn't such

a threat at that point that it made any impression on me. So

I don't know.

MR. RUGGLES: We've talked about some of the

problems with the union, the attitudes of new workers, and the

changing times. One of the others that keeps popping up is
the issue of plants moving south into right-to-work states, or

at least where labor is not so organized.

And you've had several plants in your region, the

Revco plant in DeerfieTd -- they opened a plant in Williston,

South Carol in^-<rf~~you, recall .jLn--the-^' 60s. And the LA

Darling/(ph. sp.) Company in Bronson, which had been there
since 19.09.

MR. ELLIS: Old time.

MR. RUGGLES: That's a long time.

MR. ELLIS: Yes.

MR. RUGGLES: They opened up a plant in Paragould,

Arkansas. This must have been causing you a great number of
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1 problems. What inducements can be made, do you think, in the

2 north, to keep labor in Michigan in part icular, or is that

3 going to continue?

4 M R . E L L I S : I t h i n k i t w i l l . I t h i n k w e ' r e g o i n g t o

5 have problems. What I said at this period of time, because

6 coming from the South, I said, you know, it 's ironic as hell.

7 Because a person comes from the South to Flint. It was a

8 transient labor group. Before the unions, they'd come, they'd

9 work six months and go home. They didn't bring their

10 famil ies, you know.

1 1 O n c e t h e y g o t t h e u n i o n , a n d g o t t h e s e n i o r i t y

12 thing, then the question of working six months for three days

13 and off and on was stopped. And seniority provided steady

14 employment. The guy came up. His wife says, well, now,

15 you're going to be working nine months. I'm not going to stay

16 down here. Me and the kids are going to go with you.

1 7 S o w e w e n t t h r o u g h a p e r i o d o f t h o s e f a m i l i e s

18 moving, and they didn't buy homes then. What the hell, they

1 9 a l l c a m e u p a n d r e n t e d , o r l i v e d w i t h o n e a n o t h e r , y o u k n o w,

2 0 i n g r o u p s .

2 1 A n d t h e n y o u g o t h r o u g h t h a t g u y, a n d t h e n h i s k i d s

22 going into the plant, and then his grandkids, through this

23 period, being into the plants. Now, then, al l at once, here

24 we are, the corporation, for what ever the reason, is moving

25 back down into the South.
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1 | A n d I s a i d , y o u k n o w , t h e i r o n i c t h i n g o f t h i s

2 g o d d a m n e d t h i n g i s t h a t a g u y w h o c a m e f r o m P a r a g o u l d ,

3 A r k a n s a s , b a c k i n 1 9 2 6 , y o u k n o w, w o r k e d h e r e 4 0 y e a r s o f h i s

4 l i f e , h i s s o n w o r k e d , a s h e g o t o l d e n o u g h . H i s g r a n d k i d n o w

5 i s w o r k i n g . A n d t h e o n l y g o d d a m n e d j o b t h e y ' r e g o i n g t o h a v e

6 i s t o g o b a c k t o P a r a g o u l d . Yo u k n o w , i f y o u h a d a r i g h t ,

7 c o n t r a c t u a l l y , w h i c h w e r e a l l y h a v e j u s t k i n d o f s c r a t c h e d t h e

8 s u r f a c e a l i t t l e b i t o n .

9 ' B u t , y o u k n o w , i t ' s i r o n i c a s h e l l . I t w o u l d b e

1 0 l i k e b u i l d i n g a p l a n t i n P i g g o t t , A r k a n s a s . Y o u k n o w , I l e a v e

1 1 t h e r e a t s e v e n y e a r s o l d . I k n o w n o t h i n g a b o u t P i g g o t t ,

1 2 A r k a n s a s . I w e n t b a c k t h e r e t w o t i m e s , s i n c e I c a m e u p h e r e

1 3 i n ' 2 6 . O n c e i n ' 3 6 f o r t w o w e e k s , a n d o n c e i n ' 7 2 , I t h i n k ,

1 4 w h e n m y m o t h e r d i e d . S h e l i v e d h e r e , b u t s h e w a s v i s i t i n g i n

1 5 M e m p h i s a n d o f c o u r s e , m y f a t h e r a n d s i s t e r a r e b u r i e d t h e r e ,

1 6 a n d s o I w e n t , w h e n s h e d i e d o n v a c a t i o n , a n d v i s i t i n g i n

1 7 M e m p h i s w i t h h e r s i s t e r . A n d s o I ' v e o n l y b e e n b a c k t w i c e

1 8 s i n c e ' 2 6 .

1 9 I I t w o u l d b e l i k e b u i l d i n g a p l a n t d o w n t h e r e . A n d

2 0 i f m y k i d s i s w o r k i n g i n t h e s h o p , y o u k n o w , a l l k i n d s o f

2 1 o p p o r t u n i t i e s f o r t h e k i d s , b u t h e ' d h a v e t o g o b a c k t o

2 2 P i g g o t t , A r k a n s a s . A n d h e h a s n ' t b e e n t o P i g g o t t i n h i s l i f e .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : D o t h e w o r k e r s h a v e t h e r i g h t t o

2 4 t r a n s f e r t o t h e s e n e w p l a n t s ?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : U n d e r c e r t a i n c o n d i t i o n s , n o w , w e d o .
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1 And this is just lately. What eventual ly is going to happen

2 in this union, and it's going to have to be, because we're

3 gett ing smaller, there's going to have to be industry-wide

4 senior i ty. At least , they could have the opportuni ty; whether

5 they'd do it or not remains to be seen.

6 j B e c a u s e w e ' v e f o u n d , e v e n t h o u g h t h e y h a v e t h e

7 opportunity, from there, if a family has been here, own a

8 home, their roots are here, their kids and their grandkids are

9 going to school, they don't want to go back down there, even

10 to have a job.

1 1 B u t i f t h e y h a d t h e r i g h t - - b e c a u s e i n c e r t a i n

12 instances, we have had the rights, and, Christ, you never get

13 the amount of people you'd dream that you knew is from down

14 there. Hell, a grandkid, he don't know anything about down

15 there. He don't want to go down there.

1 6 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d i n t h e c a s e o f W i l l i s t o n , i t ' s 8 0 0

17 mi les f rom Fl in t . I t ' s d i fficu l t to expect people to pack up

18 and move 800 miles.

1 9 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s w h a t I m e a n t . T h e i r r o o t s a r e

2 0 h e r e , n o w, s e e .

2 1 M R . R U G G L E S : S u r e .

2 2 M R . E L L I S : T h e y c a m e f r o m a t r a n s i e n t g r o u p o f

23 people to rent, and then they bought homes, and their kids go

24 to schoo l , they pay taxes. The i r roots are here . I t ' s the i r

25 home. Hell, Michigan is my home. My home state. I know
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1 nothing about Arkansas. I don't have anything against

2 Arkansas, but I have no t ies or nothing. I 'm retired, and I

3 haven't been back since I've retired to even visit anyone.

4 don't know anyone down there. One or two relatives, but

5 t h a t ' s a l l .

6 M R . R U G G L E S : P a t t e r s o n h a d w r i t t e n a l e t t e r t o

7 Senator Phil Hart at the time suggesting some king of

8 legislation to prevent, in the case of the Bronson plant and

9 the Deerfield plant, in an attempt to prevent communities from

10 floating industrial bonds as they were doing in the South, to

11 lure industr ies, perhaps reversing that and gett ing

12 communities here some type of financial help to induce plants

1 3 t o s t a y.

1 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

1 5 M R . R U G G L E S : B u t o f c o u r s e , t h a t w a s n o t g o i n g t o

16 happen overnight, that legislation. How did you handle the

17 loss of those plants? You must have had a tremendous number

18 of workers out of work.

1 9 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , w e h a d n o f r i e n d s a n y w h e r e t o k e e p

20 it from happening. And it went from economic things. It went

21 to where a guy just said, what the hell, I'm going to move.

22 I've got a contract here, and the goddamned contract, I'm not

23 going to l ive wi th i t . The hel l w i th the union. By contract ,

24 you used to not be able to do that. You couldn't just do it

25 because of the union.r
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1 T h e l a w s h a v e b e e n fl i m - fl a m s i e d ( s i c ) a r o u n d t o

2 where, Christ, you can't win one of them anymore And you've

3 got no help anywhere, to keep someone from just doing those

4 k i nds o f t h i ngs .

5 A n d i t ' s s a d . I d o n ' t k n o w h o w m a n y p l a n t s I ' v e

6 been through that are closing, because each one of those

7 employees who quits has got a family. The independent parts

8 and supplier people working, you know, are having a rougher

9 time anyway than the big plants. And it 's just the nature of

10 not being able to do anything about it.

11 Yo u t a k e a s m a l l c o m m u n i t y t h a t ' s g o t t h r e e o r f o u r

12 plants that hire 2000, 3000 people. They all move or drop out

13 one by one, why, pretty soon, that community has got nothing.

1 4 A n d I r e a l l y d o n ' t k n o w . T h a t ' s w h y I s a y , n e w

15 plants, if they're GM, Ford or Chrysler, and they're under

16 contract, there's got to be some kinds of opportunity for

17 displaced GM workers that have got seniority to work there.

1 8 ' N o w , n a t u r a l l y , t h a t ' s g o i n g t o c r e a t e a p r o b l e m i n

19 that town. But because we are getting smaller, we are going

20 to have to go to protecting those members that we've got, at

21 least they have the opportunity. Though I can see -- I don't

22 know how far down the road it will be -- that eventually,

23 there's got to be some industry-wide seniority clauses.
2 4 C h r y s l e r y o u h a v e a fi t i f y o u h a d t h e m r i g h t i n

25 front from one local to the other, although now, under the
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1 a r e a - w i d e , w e ' r e a p p l y i n g t h a t w i t h i n t h e c i t y o f F l i n t . Yo u

2 know, you can ' t h i re new people i f you 've got someone la id o f f

3 f rom a GM plant .

4 B u t t h a t ' s a s m a l l , c o m p a c t a r e a , a n d i t d o e s n ' t

5 b o t h e r t h e s e p e o p l e t o o m u c h . T h e y d o n ' t l i k e i t , b u t i f y o u

6 w o r k e d a t B u i c k , a n d y o u ' r e l a i d o f f , a n d t h e y ' r e h i r i n g o v e r

7 he re to Chevy, we say you ' re o f fe red a job . You 've go t to go

8 t o w o r k .

9 W e l l , t h e y d i d n ' t l i k e t h a t a t fi r s t . B u t a t l e a s t

1 0 i t k e e p s i t w i e l d y , a n d r i g h t t h e r e i t p r o t e c t s a l i t t l e b i t .

11 F l i n t cou ld be a ghos t t own , i f t he au tomo t i ve i ndus t r y shu t

1 2 d o w n . E v e r y t h i n g i n F l i n t i s t i e d t o t h e a u t o m o t i v e i n d u s t r y.

1 3 I d o n ' t g i v e a s h i t w h a t i t i s . B a n k s , i n s u r a n c e , e v e r y t h i n g

1 4 t h a t l i v e s a n d b r e a t h e s i s t i e d t o t h e a u t o m o t i v e i n d u s t r y.

15 I f tha t au tomot ive don ' t do good , you 've go t p rob lems here in

1 6 F l i n t .

1 7 L i k e I s a y , y o u g e t o n e h i c c u p , a n d a l a y o f f i n

18 general in the UAW, and we get pneumonia here, because we've

1 9 g o t m o r e p e o p l e t o s t a r t w i t h , a n d s o m o r e o f t h e m a r e g o i n g

2 0 t o b e i n v o l v e d .

2 1 I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t t h e a n s w e r i s t o t h e m m o v i n g

2 2 e x i s t i n g o p e r a t i o n s t o d i f f e r e n t s t a t e s . I k n o w i t ' s t o u g h e r

2 3 t h a n h e l l o n o r g a n i z i n g . I c a n u n d e r s t a n d t h i s : I c a n

24 unders tand tha t you take a sma l l t own , j us t l i ke where I 'm

25 f rom now, Houghton Lake. There 's no work oppor tun i ty a t
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1 Houghton Lake for those kids that are going to get out of

2 school. You'll get a minimum wage, if you can get a job.

3 j W e l l , i t ' s t h e s a m e t h i n g w i t h t h e s e s m a l l t o w n s .

4 You put a goddamned plant in Houghton Lake that would hire,

5 for example, 3 000 people, at a decent pay, and it would be an

6 opportunity for those kids to remain in that community. I

7 don't know what the hell they're going to do when they get

8 through school . There 's a lot of people. And that 's just a

9 l i t t le small town, Houghton Lake.

1 0 A n d t h e k i d s , w h e n t h e y g e t t h r o u g h s c h o o l , t h e y

11 can't work there. There's not even enough work there now to

12 keep them. The same thing in the South.

1 3 S o w h e n a n o p p o r t u n i t y c o m e s , a n d t h e y p u t a p l a n t

14 in one of those small places down South, and the wage

15 structure, you know, what the hell do they need a union for?

16 Christ, they're being offered $4 an hour more than they've

17 ever made in their life, or their dad has ever made, you know?

1 8 S o t h e y h a v e n o s e n s e o f w a n t i n g a u n i o n . T h e y

19 don' t need i t . So there's no sympathy there r ight now. I f i t

20 stays long enough, there will be. It won't be by us creating

21 it. It will be by the companies, because we never organized

22 nobody down there anyway. The goddamned companies organize

2 3 i t , not us.
2 4 M R . R U G G L E S : S p r i n g H i l l w a s o r g a n i z e d b y t h e

25 company.
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1 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s t r u e . S o w e ' d h a v e n e v e r h a d t h e

2 UAW. I f i t wasn' t for a l l the th ings we've got , i f the

3 goddamned companies had just recognized that they were dealing

4 with human beings. They didn't mean nothing to them.

5 I t ' s s a d t o s a y , b u t i t ' s f a c t . T h e r e ' s n u m b e r s .

6 And, you know, there's 6000 people in the city of Flint

7 they've got to get rid of, they're just numbers, as far as

8 they're concerned. I t 's not people, i t 's 6000 displacements,

9 you know.

1 0 S o w e ' r e g o i n g t h r o u g h a c h a n g e . W e ' v e b e e n t h r o u g h

11 the heyday in the automotive industry. The last 42 years has

12 been a heyday. We've come to a point of time, not just now,

13 but a few years back, that with all the unemployment we've

14 got, we can't build more goddamned cars and put on the road

15 anyway, even if they could sell them.

1 6 W e ' v e a l r e a d y m o r e b u i l t . T h a t ' s w h y t h e t o w n s a r e

17 dying. We've got more built in the big cit ies -- we've got

18 more goddamned cars than can go down and shop. There's no

19 park ing. And that 's what 's k i l led a l l the b ig towns. There 's

20 no place to park.

2 1 S o t h e g u y s a y s , w h a t t h e h e l l , w h y d o n ' t w e b u y t e n

22 acres and put in 15, 20 little stores and a supermarket? And

2 3 i t k i l l s t h e m .

2 4 S o w e ' v e g o n e t h r o u g h t h e h e y d a y i n t h e a u t o m o b i l e
2 5 industry. And as I say, you can build more cars than you can
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1 put on the road. There ain't room for them. And we can do it

2 right now, with the unemployment we've got. I don't know how

3 many thousand that could be laid off, with all the technology

4 and robots and stuff they've got.

5 M y o n l y t h i n k i n g , a l l t h r o u g h t h e y e a r s , w a s t h e

6 only thing in our favor was that there's just a certain amount

7 of them they can use, because they've got to sell these cars

8 to somebody. But they ' re s t i l l bu i ld ing p lants , and

9 automating them to where you walk down through the son-of-a-

10 bitch and you don't see any workers.

1 1 M R . R U G G L E S : R o b o t s d o n ' t b u y c a r s .

1 2 M R . E L L I S : N o , u n l e s s t h e y t e a c h t h e m . T h e y c a n

13 se l l them, I suppose. I guess i t ' s fo r ( ind iscern ib le) , bu t

14 not that much. Just create one to punch a clock, and then pay

15 them, and then take back the money and hell, he drive a car.

16 Shit, they can drive. They've got a sense of small. They can

17 feel. It's astounding what can be done. So I don't know what

18 the hell the answer is.

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : L e t m e a s k y o u a b o u t s o m e o f t h e

2 0 p e o p l e t h a t y o u m u s t h a v e e n c o u n t e r e d a s t h e R e g i o n a l D i r e c t o r

21 here in Michigan, especially since you covered not only Flint,

22 but the Lansing area. A lot of governors. You've been around

2 3 through a whole bunch of them.

2 4 B u t l e t m e s t a r t w i t h o n e p e r s o n , o f c o u r s e . I ' d

25 like to get your impressions of Walter Reuther. We've
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1 mentioned him briefly. I 've heard him cal led everything from

2 an S.O.B. to a saint. A lot of people have attacked him. A

3 lot of people have revered him. You had a lot of personal

4 dealings with Walter. Tell me about Walter Reuther.

5 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I g u e s s y o u ' v e c o v e r e d i t , r e a l l y .

6 He did all them things. Walter Reuther came along in the

7 labor movement at the right time and at the right place and

8 was the right guy. And there are people who looked at him as

9 God, you know. And sti l l do.

1 0 A n d t h e r e n e v e r w i l l b e o r n e v e r h a s b e e n a n o t h e r

11 Walter Reuther. By the same token, there never has been and

12 never will be another Leonard Woodcock, or another Doug

13 Fraser. And even the latest one you've got, another Owen

14 Bieber, because there's really no two individuals that are

1 5 i d e n t i c a l .

1 6 T h e t h i n g w i t h L e o n a r d a n d w i t h D o u g , a n d w i t h O w e n ,

17 is that they all were a part of the Reuther, growing up

18 together, and working and l iv ing together. And I don't think

19 we'll ever have another period in history come by for another

20 man to come along in that.

2 1 A n d s o t h e w h o l e h i s t o r y o f t h e u n i o n , a s i t g o e s

22 along, you aren't going to remember anybody but Walter

23 Reuther, you know.

2 4 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e r e a r e n ' t a s m a n y p e o p l e t a l k i n g

25 about Homer Martin or R.J. Thomas --
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1 M R . E L L I S : W h y , y e a h . Y o u t a l k a b o u t H o m e r M a r t i n

2 or R.J. Thomas, or George Addis --

3 M R . R U G G L E S : G e o r g e A d d i s , y e s .

4 | M R . E L L I S : W h o t h e h e l l a r e t h e y ? T h a t ' s b e c a u s e ,

5 you know, as a guy i s the re and s tays , the h i s to ry i s wr i t t en

6 d i f f e r e n t l y .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : I w a s d o w n a t t h e D a v e M i l l e r B u i l d i n g

8 the other day, and George Addis got up to speak, and I

9 cou ldn ' t he lp bu t reflec t on the fac t t ha t t he two cameramen

10 with the v ideotape machine, when Addis got up to speak, they

1 1 s h u t i t o f f a n d l e f t .

1 2 | M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

1 3 M R . R U G G L E S : T h e y d i d n ' t k n o w w h o h e w a s .

1 4 j M R . E L L I S : N o , t h a t ' s a s h a m e .

1 5 ' M R . R U G G L E S : I t i s a s h a m e .

1 6 M R . E L L I S : I t i s a s h a m e , b e c a u s e G e o r g e A d d i s m a d e

17 a tac t fu l dec is ion , you know. He cou ld have been the

18 sec re ta ry / t reasure r w i th Wa l te r Reu ther, because he had the

19 ab i l i t y. And George Add i s was the guy fo r R .J . Thomas . R .J .

20 Thomas was the president, but George Addis was the backbone of

21 that group of people. And he was a smart man. And as far as

22 ded i ca t i on t o t he un ion , no ques t i on on t ha t .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : W h y d o y o u s u p p o s e h e m a d e t h e

24 dec i s i on no t t o go w i t h Wa l t e r?

2 5 M R . E L L I S : H e d i d n ' t t h i n k W a l t e r w a s g o i n g t o g e t
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1 e l e c t e d .

2 j M R . R U G G L E S : H e j u s t c h o s e t h e w r o n g s i d e ?

3 M R . E L L I S : T h a t ' s r i g h t . H e j u s t d i d n ' t t h i n k h e

4 was go ing t o ge t e l ec ted .

5 | M R . R U G G L E S : B u t a f t e r h e d i d g e t e l e c t e d i n ' 4 6 ,

6 A d d i s w a s s t i l l s e c r e t a r y / t r e a s u r e r f o r t h a t fi r s t y e a r ,

7 w a s n ' t h e ?

8 M R . E L L I S : Y e s .

9 M R . R U G G L E S : H e c o u l d h a v e s t a y e d o n ? O r c o u l d n ' t

10 he have?

1 1 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I s t i l l t h i n k m a y b e , y e s . B u t h e

12 s t i l l was in the same pos i t ion , because Wal te r was the on ly

1 3 o n e e l e c t e d . H e l l , t h e r e s t o f t h e b o a r d w a s a l l A d d i s

1 4 p e o p l e .

1 5 M R . R U G G L E S : F o r t h a t fi r s t y e a r ?

1 6 I M R . E L L I S : W e l l , s u r e . A n d w h a t t h e y d i d i s t h e y

17 made a very bad mis take wi th Wal ter. You know, they wouldn ' t

1 8 g i v e h i m a n y t h i n g t o d o . T h e y d i d n ' t g i v e h i m a n o f fi c e . N o

1 9 n o t h i n g . S o t h e y w o u l d n ' t g i v e h i m n o t h i n g . S o , w h a t t h e

20 he l l , he d idn ' t have no th ing to do , so he went ou t and

21 s t rengthened up h is caucus .

2 2 T h e y s h o u l d h a v e k e p t h i m b u s y a s h e l l , a n d

23 ins i s ted , you know, you do th i s k ind o f work , i ns tead o f ge t

2 4 l o s t . B e c a u s e Wa l t e r d i d n ' t g e t l o s t , y o u k n o w.

2 5 S o r e a l l y , G e o r g e , a t t h i s p a r t i c u l a r t i m e , s t i l l
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1 was very simple of mind. Hell, he only had a one-year

2 convention. Only put up with him for one year.

3 | M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u d i d n ' t b e c o m e r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r

4 unt i l the year that Walter died?

5 M R . E L L I S : ' 7 0 .

6 M R . R U G G L E S : ' 7 0 . B u t p r i o r t o t h a t t i m e , y o u h a d
7 some personal contacts with him, even though you didn't sit on

8 the executive board?

9 j M R . E L L I S : R i g h t .

1 0 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d y o u s e e t h e o r g a n i z a t i o n , a t t h a t

11 time, the International Executive Board, and the UAW general,

12 as a democratic organization? Or was it Walter Reuther's

13 baby?

1 4 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , I t h i n k i t w a s W a l t e r ' s b a b y . I

15 think -- I don't want to say it wasn't democratic, because I

16 think our union has always been the most democratic union in

17 existence, and even to our own detriment, a lot of times.

1 8 A n d n o t h i n g d e m o c r a t i c t h a t w a s n o t t o t h e d e t r i m e n t

19 -- would be a detriment either to the union or to Walter, it
20 wasn't going to happen.

2 1 T h a t ' s w h y I s a y , s o h e fi t s v e r y g o o d i n b o t h . H e

22 was a saint to so many people, because he was a good man. And

23 he worked seven days a week, 24 hours a day, for this union.
24 And he bu i l t ter r ific po l i t ica l power wi th in the un ion

25 structure, you know.
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1 i I f h e w a s a n t i - - - t h e r e w e r e n o a n t i - r e g i o n a l

2 d i r e c t o r s , y o u k n o w, f r o m ' 5 1 . F r o m ' 5 1 . T h e r e w e r e n o a n t i -

3 r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r s . C a r t e r w a s n ' t a n a n t i - r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r .

4 He couldn ' t be, because we wouldn ' t le t h im be i f he had

5 wanted to be. You know, he d idn ' t want to be, but those were

6 t h e r u l e s . A n d s o Wa l t e r j u s t e l i m i n a t e d , w i t h i n t h e

7 d e m o c r a t i c s t r u c t u r e .

8 I t h i n k t h e r e ' s a l o t o f t h i n g s t h a t d e m o c r a c y , i t

9 r e a l l y d o n ' t m e a n a h e l l o f a l o t . J u s t t h e s o u n d o f i t g e t s

10 in your way, you know.

1 1 B u t t h i s u n i o n w i l l b e r e m e m b e r e d , r e a l l y , u n l e s s

1 2 t h e r e ' s a p o l i t i c a l c h a n g e f r o m t h e o f fi c e r s a n d t h e b o a r d i n

1 3 t h e n e x t s i x , e i g h t , t e n y e a r s - - a n d I d o n ' t s e e t h a t - - i n

1 4 t h i s u n i o n , t h e r e ' s g o i n g t o b e Wa l t e r ' s u n i o n r u l e s .

1 5 , B e c a u s e t h e h i s t o r y i s g o i n g t o b e t h a t . B e c a u s e

16 when you way Walter Reuther and Doug Fraser and Leonard

17 Woodcock and Owen Bieber, i t 's al l Walter Reuther, you know,

18 because they have the same ph i losophy, and jus t d i f fe ren t

19 pe rsona l app roaches . They have t he same . Tha t w i l l g radua l l y

20 change , as each o f t he o ld ones l eave . Tha t w i l l change . Bu t

21 he was a great man.

2 2 j M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u b e c a m e r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r i n ' 7 0 ,

2 3 a f t e r h e d i e d ?

2 4 M R . E L L I S : A f t e r W a l t e r ?

2 5 j M R . R U G G L E S : Y e s ?
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1 M R . E L L I S : N o .

2 I M R . R U G G L E S : B e f o r e ?

3 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h . S e e , t h e d a y W a l t e r w a s k i l l e d , I

4 had a reg iona l educa t iona l mee t ing a t t he C iv i c Cen te r i n

5 Lans ing. And a t the convent ion , Wal ter had agreed to come.

6 He was supposed to be at our convention the night he was

7 k i l l e d . B u t h e s e n t D o u g F r a s e r. T h i s c a m e u p , t h e p r o b l e m

8 of h im and the archi tect happened to go to Black Lake

9 u n e x p e c t e d l y.

1 0 I r v B l u e s t o n e w a s s c h e d u l e d t o g o w i t h h i m . A n d

11 r igh t a t the las t minu te , I don ' t remember now what i t was , a

1 2 f a m i l y t h i n g , o r s o m e t h i n g , t h a t I r v s a y s t o Wa l t e r, d o y o u

13 rea l l y need me? And Wa l te r says , we l l , under the

1 4 c i r c u m s t a n c e s , n o . I c a n fi l l y o u i n t o m o r r o w, o r w h e n I g e t

1 5 b a c k .

1 6 H e w a s s c h e d u l e d t o g o w i t h h i m , a n d d i d n ' t g o . A n d

17 so we had our educat ional seminar. I don' t remember now, we

18 go t th rough abou t ten o ' c lock . And Doug s tayed a t the Cap i to l

1 9 P a r k M o t e l . I d r o v e . F o r t h a t d i s t a n c e , I ' d d r i v e b a c k a n d

2 0 f o r t h . A n d h e t h o u g h t I w a s s t a y i n g . A n d h e s a i d , l e t ' s g o

2 1 d o w n a f t e r t h i s i s o v e r, a n d w e ' l l h a v e a b e e r. I s a y s , O k a y.

22 He says , a re you s tay ing a t t he ho te l? I sa id , No . He says ,

2 3 Yo u d r i v e b a c k a n d f o r t h ? I s a i d , H e l l , y e s . Yo u k n o w, I ' m

24 gone so much anyway. I t ' s on ly an hour.

2 5 B u t a n y w a y , I w e n t d o w n , a n d w e s a t t h e r e u n t i l
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1 t w e l v e . Ye a h , i t w a s t w e l v e o ' c l o c k I t h i n k , o r 11 : 3 0 b e f o r e

2 ' I lef t . He goes to bed, and I dr ive home. And I get home,

3 and I go t in bed . I don ' t remember now exac t l y what t ime i t

4 was , and Chr is t , he ca l led me. They had ca l led h im. And we

5 d i d n ' t k n o w i t u n t i l , I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t t i m e , o n e o r t w o

6 o 'c lock in the morn ing . He ca l led me and to ld me over the

7 phone . They had jus t ca l l ed h im, and Wa l te r, you know, i n

8 t h a t w r e c k , h a d b e e n k i l l e d .

9 M R . R U G G L E S : T h a t w a s a t r a u m a t i c p e r i o d . T h e b i g

10 debate then was, would i t be Woodcock or Fraser for president .

11 A n d o f c o u r s e , i t - -

1 2 M R . E L L I S : I t w a s a l l d o n e r e a l q u i c k , t o o .

1 3 M R . R U G G L E S : W a s i t ? H o w ?

1 4 M R . E L L I S : I t h i n k v e r y s i m p l y . I t h i n k w e d i d i t

1 5 i n a w e e k . R e a l q u i c k .

1 6 i M R . R U G G L E S : W a s i t a f a i r l y u n a n i m o u s d e c i s i o n f o r

1 7 L e o n a r d ?

1 8 j M R . E L L I S : N o . N o . A s I s a y , w e ' r e a l l - - n o , i t

1 9 w a s n o u n a n i m o u s a t a l l . I n f a c t , m y r e c o l l e c t i o n i s t h a t

20 Fraser had one more vote than Leonard had, but he didn't have

21 the membersh ip , you know. In o ther words , the d i rec to rs who

22 rep resen ted the bu lk o f the membersh ip . See , I suppor ted

23 Leonard over Doug. Hel l , I 'd known them both a long t ime, but

24 Leonard's from the GM Section of our agreement.

2 5 | S o n u m b e r s o f t h e b o a r d m e m b e r s , I a m n o t p o s i t i v e .
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1 But I think the record would show that Doug had one more vote,

2 a c t u a l v o t e , o n t h e b o a r d t h a n L e o n a r d d i d . B u t I d o n ' t t h i n k

3 h e h a d a G M r e g i o n a l d i r e c t o r . W e l l , h e l l , t h a t ' s t h e b u l k o f

4 the membersh ip . And so Doug wi thdrew at that po in t , and

5 suggested that we e lec t Leonard.

6 I A n d t h e n r i g h t a f t e r t h a t , w e h a v e a t w o - m a n a p p e a l

7 commit tee, made up o f o fficers and board members . And r ight

8 a f t e r t h a t , t h e n , r i g h t a f t e r t h e g o d d a m n e d e l e c t i o n , L e o n a r d

9 put me and Doug together. I had to work seven years with a

10 two-man commit tee, an appeals commit tee, wi th Fraser.

1 1 M R . R U G G L E S : W e l l , y o u s p e n t y o u r e n t i r e l i f e i n

12 the un ion , Mr. E l l i s . Le t me ask you a coup le o f ques t i ons ,

1 3 b e f o r e w e w r a p i t u p , r e l a t i n g t o p o l i t i c s .

1 4 B a c k t o a l l t h e g o v e r n o r s t h a t h a v e s e r v e d . Y o u ' v e

15 served as reg iona l d i rec to r and a t some lower pos i t ion in the

16 union under Soapy Wil l iams and George Romney and Bi l l Mi l l iken

17 and a whole bunch of people.

1 8 M R . E L L I S : S w a n s o n .

1 9 M R . R U G G L E S : S w a i n s o n .

2 0 M R . E L L I S : S w a i n s o n , r i g h t .

2 1 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d n o w B l a n c h a r d .

2 2 M R . E L L I S : A n d n o w , t h e n , o u r l a s t o n e .

2 3 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d I ' v e f o r g o t t e n a c o u p l e , p r o b a b l y .

2 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : B u t i f y o u c o u l d p i c k o n e , a s a l a b o r
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1 leader, i f you cou ld p i ck a governor o f M ich igan du r ing your

2 l i f e t ime, who wou ld your cho ice be?

3 | M R . E L L I S : W e l l , d u r i n g m y l i f e t i m e , t h a t w o u l d b e

4 e a s y t o a n s w e r.

5 M R . R U G G L E S : F r a n k M u r p h y .

6 M R . E L L I S : I s t h a t d a m n r i g h t .

7 M R . R U G G L E S : I d i d n ' t m e a n t o p u t w o r d s i n y o u r

8 m o u t h .

9 M R . E L L I S : W e l l , y o u ' r e c o r r e c t . N a t u r a l l y , i t

10 would have been Frank Murphy. The rest , i t would be a real

11 chore fo r me. I guess I wou ld , in answer to tha t , say Soapy

1 2 W i l l i a m s . I t h i n k I p r o b a b l y w o u l d , n a t u r a l l y, b e c a u s e h e

13 served a long leng th o f t ime, and I was persona l l y invo lved

14 wi th him, and knew him.

1 5 A n d o h , t h e r e a r e m a n y t h i n g s a b o u t i t t h a t I d i d n ' t

1 6 p a r t i c u l a r l y l i k e . B u t t h e r e a r e a l o t o f t h i n g s a b o u t a l o t

1 7 o f p e o p l e t h a t I d i d n ' t l i k e , a n d I ' m s u r e t h e r e ' s a l o t o f

1 8 p e o p l e t h a t d i d n ' t l i k e m e .

1 9 j B u t i n t h a t g r o u p , a n d I t h i n k I ' d b a s e i t o n t h e

2 0 a m o u n t o f y e a r s , b e c a u s e I g u e s s h e s e r v e d a b o u t 1 2 y e a r s , o r

2 1 s o m e t h i n g l i k e t h a t .

2 2 I M R . R U G G L E S : Yo u h a d a n a u t o m o b i l e m a n u p t h e r e ,

23 once, George Romney.

2 4 M R . E L L I S : Y e a h .

2 5 M R . R U G G L E S : D i d t h a t g i v e y o u a n y t r o u b l e , a s a
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1 labor leader?

2 M R . E L L I S : Y e s . I t d i d n ' t - - i t d i d , i n t h a t

3 sense, my association with him. He was an arrogant guy, as

4 arrogant as hell. And his approach, when he was running, his

5 approach, as far as the union was concerned, or anyone in

6 opposition to him, was, you know, to just walk in your house

7 uninvited, and spit in your eye.

8 Y o u k n o w , I r e s e n t t h a t k i n d o f a t h i n g . A n d s o i t

9 was just a normal barrier. I didn't know him personally very

10 wel l . I never worked wi th h im personal ly. So I d idn ' t l ike

11 too much about him, any part.

1 2 A n d h e c a m e i n t o s o m e o f t h e l o c a l u n i o n s a n d h e w a s

1 3 v e r y a r r o g a n t . A n d i t e v i d e n t l y p a i d o f f p o l i t i c a l l y. I t

14 helped him.

1 5 ! M R . R U G G L E S : D o y o u f e e l l i k e y o u ' r e a p a r t o f

16 history? I t sounds l ike a s i l ly quest ion to me, but - -

1 7 I M R . E L L I S : W e l l , i t ' s n o t a s i l l y q u e s t i o n , b e c a u s e

18 yes, I do. I don't know how to express it in that sense. But

19 when you've lived through and represented the people in the

20 plant, and the book and instructions and agreements you could

21 put in your shir t pocket.

2 2 A n d t h e n , c o m e i n t o a p e r i o d o f t i m e n o w t o w h e r e ,

23 you know, a district committeeman and a shop committeeman are

24 going to have a briefcase, and they need three or four trunks,

25 and people to carry it around with them, you know.
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1 ! A n d a l l o f t h e t h i n g s t h a t h a v e h a p p e n e d d u r i n g t h e

2 period of time that I was afforded the opportunity to work

3 with this union. I never dwelt on it in my own mind at all

4 until, you know, as you get older, and each one of them you've

5 been a part of. And it has been history in the last 42 years

6 o f t h i s u n i o n .

7 A n d s o I ' m r e a l c o n t e n t e d , a n d h a p p y, a n d r e a l p r o u d

8 that I 've had the opportunity to do that, recognizing, number

9 one, that most of al l of my l i fe, any opportunity that I 've

10 had, you had to get elected, with the exception of the

11 appointment as an international rep.

1 2 I w o r k e d t w o y e a r s i n a j o b w h e r e I w a s a p p o i n t e d .

13 Then I spent the rest of my time in appointed positions with

14 us being the only two guys that could be moved if the director

15 got beat .

1 6 S e e , o u r c o n s t i t u t i o n p r o v i d e s i f t h e d i r e c t o r i s

17 defeated, the assistant automatically is gone, because the new

18 director has the r ight, in our const i tut ion, to select his own

1 9 a s s i s t a n t .

2 0 j S o I ' v e b e e n i n a p o s i t i o n o f e l e c t i v e p o s i t i o n s .

21 And ever since '53 -- 54, I guess it was. If Carter got beat,

22 I don't have a job. And the same thing in the local union.

23 If you get defeated on one job, you've got to run again.

2 4 W e l l , I ' v e b e e n f o r t u n a t e , I g u e s s . I n e v e r s a i d

25 this until the last convention, you made a mistake when you
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elected me, because that was the last one until '83. I said,

I want all you delegates to understand this. I never told you

3 this, but you made a mistake, because you had an opportunity

to do something to me that no one else ever has. I've never

5 lost an elect ion. You just elected me. There's nothing you

can do about it, because I can't run in '83.

MR. RUGGLES: That's a good place to stop, Mr.

Ellis. '83 was the place you stopped.

MR. ELLIS: That's r ight.

2 2 M R . R U G G L E S : A n d w e ' r e j u s t a b o u t o u t o f t a p e r i g h t

now. I want to thank you very much. It was a beautiful

1 2 i n t e r v i e w.
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